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AIRMALTAplc
Annual Report and Consolidated Financia! Statements - 31 March 2012

Directors’ report

The Directors present ther report and the audited financial statements of Air Malta p I ¢ for the year
ended 31 March 2012

Principal activities

The pnincipal activity of Air Malta p | ¢, as exercised by the holding Campany, 1s the undertaking of ailine
operations Ancillary actvities of the Group snclude amongst others, ground handling operations, tour
operations and other tounsm related activities and insurance During the current financial year, the Group
pursued its effarts to divest from non-core operating activities The Group holds investments in a number
of subsidiary and associated undertakings

Review of the business and resuits
General

Aur Malta p | ¢ has been incurming (osses on its core airline business for several years During the financial
year ended 31 March 2012, the Group incurred losses from continuing operations before tax amounting to
€37 6 million (2011 €659 mullion) putting the Group's equity base under further stran, The Group's
liabilities exceeded its assets as at 31 March 2012 by €103 8 milion (2011 €68 8 milhon) and its current
habilities exceeded its current assets by €69 9 million (2011 €62 7 mullion) as at that date, excluding the
impact of sales in advance from the Group’s current habilities

Restructuring Plan and Restructuring Aid

In order to address the commercial challenges the arline 1s facing, the Company's Restructunng Plan was
devised sethng out the strategy to return the aine to positive financial results and a positive net cash
flow position Duning the current financial year, the Govemment of Malta, as the pnncipal shareholder, has
taken ownership of the Restructunng Plan {*The Plan”) and communicated this to the European
Commission (“The Commussion™), seeking Comrmssion approval of the Restructunng Plan and of the
imphed restructunng aid

This Restructuring Plan sets out the turnaround strategy for the Company for the five-year penod financial
year 2012 (FY2012) to financiai year 2016 (FY2016) The Plan was drawn up following the Govemnment's
notfication — and subsequent European Commussion appraval — of the prowision of a €52 million Rescue
Aid Loan to the Company According to the Restructunng Plan, a capital increase of €130 milion 1s
required to help restructure the Company, which has been in difficulty for several years

On 27 June 2012, The Commussion has communicated its decision confirming approval of Restructunng
Aud for Air Maita p l.c. and it resolved that a €130 million aid amount to be granted to the Company for its
restructuring 1s in ine with EU slate aid rules The Commission observed that the Restructunng Plan
adequately addresses the financial problems of the Company The restructuring measures foreseen,
which inciude a significant capacity reduction and the sale of assets, should ensure long-term viabiity
without continued state support, whilst avoiding undue distortions of competion

in accordance with its investigation, The Commission resolved that the Restructunng Plan 1s based on
realistic assumptions and should enable Air Malta p.l ¢ to become wiable within a reasonable tmescale
The Commussion 1s salisfied that the proposed capacity reduchon consisting in the withdrawal from certain
routes will avoid undue distortions of competntion Moreover, Air Malta p | ¢ will contribute to the costs of
restructunng by selling property and cther assets, as well as secunng pnvate bank borrowings




AIRMALTAPplIc
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Directors’ report - continued
General - contnued

The survival of the Company is intnnsically inked to the ability of the arline to rapidly and successfully
execute a range of cost and revenue initatives as reflected in the Restructuring Plan The Restructunng
Plan shows that the existing level of losses can be turned around to breakeven levels by FY2014 and to
profitabiity by FY2015 Air Malta plc has already proceeded with the implementation of intatives
contemplated within the Restructunng Plan as submitted to The Commusston for the approval of the
Restructuring Aud, inciuding

significant downsiang of the head count through Voluntary and Early Retirement Schemes,
implementation of a comprehensive change agenda of more than 160 projects covering alt aspects

of the airline,

. implementation of a more disaggregated and intemet-based reservation/sales function in line with
the model adopted by other camers, and

. appointment of key executives with industry expertise

The effectiveness of the measures already taken has been reflected in the improved financial results
registered dunng the current financial year when compared to the preceding financial year performance
in view of the phased implementation of the measures envisaged, the full benefit of cost reductions has
not bean experienced by the Company dunng the year ended 31 March 2012 This i1s expected to occur In
the financial year ending 31 March 2013 further improving the operating results registered During the
forthcoming financal year, the Company will pursue with the implementation of the next measures and
phases as envisaged in the Restructunng Plan

Financing of the Restructuring Plan

The Restructunng Plan reflects the strategy to return the aiine to a positive net cash flow position by the
end of FY2014 This return to a positive net cash flow position will however require the Company to sell its
main remaming property assets The funding raised will then be employed in the restructunng of the
Company and supplemented by approved State Aid in the form of a capital injechon The funding plan
imphed within the Restructunng Plan has been formally approved and fully supported by Government, as
the Company's principal shareholder To this end the Rescue Aid Loan from the pnnaipal shareholder that
was due for repayment in November 2011 has been extended for a further period to November 2012 or
until one month from the date on which the Restructuring Plan has been finally determined and approved
by the Commussion, whichever I1s the earlier

The principal steps in the financing process, reflected within the Restructuring Plan and accordingly
approved by the European Commuission, are the following

. on 7 December 2011, a Promise of Sale Agreement to dispose of the prnincipal property,
constituting the remaining main asset owned by the Company, for an amount of €66.2 milon has
been entered into with Government A deposit of €20 million has been paid by Government duning
January 2012;

. simultaneously, the Company has successfully negotiated fresh bank loans amounting to €30
milion These faciiies are secured on the Promise of Sale Agreement referred to above and will be
repaid through the sale proceeds In addition, faciliies of €20 milion will be required dunng the later
part of the 5 year plan,

. the disposal process of the Company's subsidianes and other strategic investments, which have
been earmarked for sale, has progressed dunng the current financial year,
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Directors’ report - continued
General - continued

. Govemment will make a fresh commercial loan of €52 million to the Company These funds will be
used by the Company to pay back the existing Rescue Aid Loan in fine with the European
Commssion's Rescue and Restructuning Guidelines The commercial loan will be converted to
equity In the later part of the 5 year plan, and

. the Company will 1ssue €78 milion of fresh equity to Government The capital will be called up In
tranches In due course in accordance with the programme established in the Restructunng Plan,

Overall assessment of going concern

Taking cogrusance of the approval by the European Commussion of the Company's Restructuning Pian, it
15 the view of the directors that there 1s a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group are
able to continue In operatonal existence for a penod of at leas! 12 months from the end of the reporting
period Accordingly, the directors contnue to adopt the going concem basis in prepanng the financial
statements, on the basis of

1) the formal approval of the Plan by the Commission,

() the current level of commitment shown by the Government of Malta, including approval of the
imphed funding requirements,

(m) the financing arrangements already put into place, and

(v) the underlying assumption that the Restructuring Plan can be implemented in a timely manner and
in accordance with its terms

Financial results

The arime’s operatng loss for the year amounted to €298 milion This result represents a net
improvement of €4 3 million over the corresponding loss in FY2011 of €34 1 milkon However, the FY2012
performance was adversely affected by the two factors descnbed below, which if eliminated for
companson purpose, will result in an operating performance improvement of €17 9 million

+ as part of the Restructunng Plan approved by the Commission, Arr Malla plc 15 obliged to
reduce significantly its capacity This has translated into an estmated reduction in profitability
dunng FY2012 of €4 milkon, and,

s the average price of fuel n FY2012 increased by 30%, significantly increasing fuel costs for the
year by €13 9 million

The improved parformance 1n FY2012 was dnven by the imitial benefits of the Restructunng Plan as the
company commenced a significant amount of activity to convert the airine from a loss making business
into a profitable operation

The revenue from aifline operatians in FY2012 amounted to €214 million compared to €207 milion in the
previous year As part of the Restructunng Plan the airfine has committed to a reduction in flight capacity
of around 20%, of which just under 10% was achieved in FY2012

Notwithstanding this reduction in capacity, revenue has increased through a number of commercial
inihatves These included improved yelds, improved seat factors together with the commencement of
vanous ancillary revenue programmes These intiatives have driven a gross improvement in revenue of
over €20 milicn which has been partally diluted by the reductton in capacity
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Directors’ report - continued
Financial results - continued

Fuel costs have increased by 26 7% in FY2012 compared to the preceding year This level of increase 1s
not envisaged to occur in FY2013

The operational costs of the airline have continued to decrease although contractual infiation has reduced
the impact of these improvements. The effect of the projects pertaining to the Restructunng Plan started
to influence the results In the second half of the financial year with aspects such as personnel costs
reducing significantly and other charges such as amport charges which reduced on the back of the waver
of Malta landing fees in winter for all airknes

The Company incurred non-operational costs dunng this financial year, including €4 6 milhon on financing
mainly relaung to the €52 million Rescue Aid Loan, partally offset by a dividend from a subsidhary
insurance company of €3 7 milhon

Dunng FY2012, under the heading “Discontinued operations” which represent companies held for sale,
the Company further increased provisions on amounts due from Holiday Malta Company Limited and
Selmun Palace Hotel Company Limited This was offset by dividend totalling €1 3 million receiwved from
Osprey Insurance Brokers Company Limited and World Aviation Group Limited resultng in a total charge
for the financial year of €5 million

The loss for the year after accounting for non-operational costs and losses from discontinued operations
resulted in a loss after tax for FY2012 of €38.4 milion.

The Group results incorporate Air Maita pic and Shield Insurance Company Limited following the
transfer of all other subsidianes to the category of assets classified as held for sale

The Group results are generally similar to the Company results, whereby the Group loss for the year
amounted to €38 4 million

Dividends
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend
Directors

The Directors of the holding Company who held office dunng the year under review and during the perod
untl the date of authonsation for 1ssue of the audited financial statements are

Lows A Farrugia - appointed as Director and Chaimman on 25 May 2011
Sonny Portell - term of office expired on 13 May 2011

Adnan Coppint

Alan Caruana - appointed as Director on 25 May 2011

Alison Attard

Andrew Calascione - appointed as Director on 25 May 2011

Anton Attard - term of office expired on 13 May 2011

Carmel John Farrugia - term of office expired on 13 May 2011

Clyde Micallef - term of office expired on 13 May 2011

Helga Ellul - appointed as Director on 25 May 2011

Hennette Busuttil - term of office expired on 13 May 2011

Mark Micallef Eynaud - appointed as Director on 25 May 2011, resigned on 29 February 2012
Roderick Chalmers - appointed as Director on 25 May 2011
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AIRMALTApIc
Annual Report and Consclidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Directors’ report - continued
Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements

The directors are required by the Maltese Compames Act, 1995 to prepare financial statements which
give a true and far view of the state of affairs of the Group and the parent Company as at the end of each
reporting period and of the profit or loss for that penod

In prepanng the financial statements, the directors are responsible for

» ensunng that the financial statements have been drawn up in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU,
selecting and applying appropnate accounting policies,
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the cireumstances,
ensunng that the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis unless it is
inappropnate to presume that the Group and the parent Company will contnue In business as a going
concern

The drreclors are also responsible for designing, implementing and mantaining internal control relevant 1o
the preparation and the far presentation of the financial statements that are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and that comply with the Maltese Companies Act, 1995
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and parent Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other rregulanties

The financial statements of Air Malta p.l ¢ for the year ended 31 March 2012 are included in the Annual
Report and Consolidated Financial Statements 2012, which 1s published in hard-copy printed form and
made avalable on the Company's website The directors are responsible for the maintenance and
integnty of the Annual Report on the website in view of their responsibiity for the controls over, and the
secunty of, the website Access to information published on the Company's website 1s available in other
countnies and junisdictions, where legislation governing the preparaton and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from requirements or practice in Malta

Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers have indicated their wilingness to continue in office and a resolution for their re-
appointment will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting

On behalf of the board

WAL pQ_ﬁ\\Q

Louwis A Farrugia Alison Attard
Chairman Director
19 July 2012
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Corporate Governance Statement

Corporate Governance 1s concemed with how companies are directed and contralled Good govemance
ensures that the Board of Directors monitors managenal performance effectively to actvave a fair return
for the shareholders whilst upholding the values of faimess, transparency, accountability and
responsibiity towards all stakeholders.

The Group's supreme decision-making body I1s the General Meeting of Shareholders of Airr Malta plc
The Group’s parent company 1s Ar Malta plc which is responsible for the Group's management,

accounting and financing, strategic planming, personnel management, communications and corporate
governance

The Group 1s committed to high standards of Corporate Governance The Board of Directors of Air Malta
plc beleves that the current set up of the Company and the Group enables them to operate n a proper
and efficient manner and provides adequate safeguards for good Corporate Governance

The Board

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association, the administration and management of the Company
15 conducted by a Board of Directors consisting of not less than five and not more than ten Directors The
Directors of the Company are appointed by the Shareholders as nearly as may be in proportion to the
shares held by such Shareholder All Directors may be removed from therr post by the shareholder
appainting them, by a lefter addressed to the Company Unless otherwise specified in their letter of
appointment, Directors hold office for a period of one year Direclors are eligible for reappointment upon
the lapse of the penod stated in therr letter of appointment

The Board compnses of seven non-executive Directors and a non-executive Chairman. The Directors are
considered independeant and no one individual or one grouping exerts an undue influence on others All
Directors, in the furtherance of their duties, have access to take.independent professional advice on any
matter at the Company's expense The Directors are conscious that their pnmary responsibility 1s always
to act in the miterest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole, irespective of who appointed them
on the Board The personal interest of a Director does not take precedence over those of the Company
and its shareholders Should a conflict anse, the Director discloses the confict in full and abstains from
taking part in the discussion and refrains from voting on the matter

The Board convenes at least monthly and all Directors receive written reports pnor to each Board meeting
which enables them to make an informed decision on the corporate and business issues under
consideraton The Charman ensures that all relevant 1ssues are on the agenda and faciitates and
encourages the presentation of views pertinent to the subject matter After each Board mesting, minutes
that faithfully record attendance and decisions taken are made avaiable to all Directors pnor to the
subsequent Board meeting. -

The roles of Chairman and Chusf Executive Officer (CEO) are separate roles which are undertaken by
separate indmiduals The Chairman 1s responsible for leading the Board, facitating Board discussions
and managing the Board's relationship with the shareholder and sentor management. The CEO ensures
that management and employees receive adequate and relevant training so that the Company remains
competitve The CEQ together with the Chief Officers is responsible for implementing the Company's
strategies and policies

The Directors believe that the Company has in place the appropnate structures, includng an adequate
system of controls, in order to achieve an adequate leve! of good Corporate Govemnance

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012 the Board of Directors met 17 times
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Corporate Governance Statement - continued
Responsibilities of the Board

The Board exercises leadership, enterpnse, integnty and judgement in directing the Company so as to
safeguard and improve its economic and commercial prospenty The key responsibilities of the Board in
fulfilling 1ts mandate are to

establish sound Corporate Governance Standards,

establish a clear internal and external reporting system so that the Board has continuous access
to accurate, relevant and timely information such that the Board can discharge 1ts duties, exercise
objective jJudgement on corporate affairs and take pertinent decisions to ensure that an informed
assessment can be made of all 1ssues facing the Board,

define the Company’s objectives, goals and general strategic directon for management,
contnbute to, approve and monitor, strategy, financial and performance objectives developed by
management,

« continuously assess and monitor the Company’s present and future operations, opportunities,
threats and nsks in the external environment and current and future strengths and weaknesses,
ensure that appropnate policies and procedures are in place to manage nsks and internal contrel,
seek to establish an effective decision-making process in order to develop the Company's
business efficiently,
ensure compliance with applicable laws, regulatons and best industry prachces,
appoint the Company's Chief Executive Officer, partcipate in the appointment of senior
management and establish a succession plan for senior management, and

s exercise accountability to sharehclders and be responsible to relevant stakeholders

The tems that are reserved for approval by the Board of Directors are the business plan, the annual
budget, the network, the procurement of fixed assets and services and the issuance of loans above
established thresholds and the performance review ncluding related performance bonus payments to
semor management

In addition, the Board sets the Company’s values and standards, including matters relating to corporate
social responsibility and ensures that its obligations to its shareholders and other stakeholders are
understood and satisfied

Relations with Shareholders

Apan from the Annual General Meeting, the Company communicates with 1ts shareholders by way of the
Annual Report and Financial Statements, and by means of other Company announcements made to the
public i general dunng the year

Relations with Stakeholders ~ Works Council

The main objective of the Works Council 1s to promote dialogue through the shanng of information and
exchange of ideas in a collaborative, participative and open manner, between the Company’'s senior
management team and its employees represented by the Central Representative Councll (CRC) The
CRC 1s given the responsibility by the Trade Untons and other non-unionised categones of staff for the
development of industnal democracy in Air Malta p l.c  Eligibility for membership to the CRC 1s confined
to full ime employees of the Company

The Works Council 1s composed of the CRC and the Company Delegates representing management The
Company Delegates compnise the Chairman, the CEQ, and any other Chief Officer, Head or employee as
required depending on the agenda to be discussed.
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Corporate Governance Statement - continued
Committees astablished by the Board

The Board has constituted the following Committees to further enhance and enable the promulgation of
good corporate governance practices throughout the Company The Board may add new Committees or
remove existing Commuittees as it deems fit in the fulfilment of its pnmary responsibiities Each Committee
s governed by a wniten charter approved by the Board The Board 1s responsible for the appoiniment of
Committee members and Committee chairpersons according to cnitena that it determines to be in the best
interest of the Company.

1) Board Committees
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee meets on a quarterly basis and has clear terms of reference, as approved by the
Board of Directors, in relation to its authonty and duties The Audit Committee reports directly to the Board
of Directors The ultimate responsibibity for delegated functions rests with the Board The Audit Commuittee
1s charred by a non-executive Director and another member of the Board 1s also @ member of the
Commuttee

The Charman of the Company, any Director, the CEQ, the external auditors, any member of the Senior
Management Team or any other employee of the Company may be requested to attend part of or all of an
Audit Committee meeting as may be decided by the Audit Committee The Audit Committee pnmarily
assists the Board in fulfilling its fiduciary responsibilities to provide oversight with respect to

» the integnty of the Company’s financial statements,
review of Company policy with respect to nsk assessment and nsk management, compliance with
legal requirements and Company policies regarding ethical conduct,

« the Company's system of internal controls, and

« the performance and engagement of the Campany's internal and extemnal auditors

Remuneration Committee

Dunng June 2011, a Remuneraton Committee was constituted and 1s chared by a non-executive
Director, and its other members are the Chairman and another non-executive Director The role of the
Remuneration Committee is to advise the Board on the remuneration packages for the Chief Executive
Officer, the members of the Senior Management and Consultants

Risk Committee

The Board has overall responsibility and ultmate accountability for risk management and has entrusted
the Risk Committee to ensure that the nsk management process within the company 1s effective  As part
of the restructunng process of Air Malta, the Board of Directors and management of Air Maita p I ¢ carmed
out a review of the company’s management of nsk The rewiew was aimed at devising a framework that
provides the necessary assurances that the financral and govemance/comphance nsks that the company
1s axposed to are pro-actively controlled and managed

The Risk Committee assists the Board m fulfilling its nsk management responsibifhes, by assessing and
providing oversight of the Company's nsk management processes and its identification, evaluation and
treatment of major strategic, financial, operational and regulatory nsks and such other nsks as necessary
to fulfil the Commitiee’s duties ;
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Corporate Governance Statement - continued
Risk Committee - continued

The Risk Committee 1 charred by the Chairman of the Company and compnses the Chief Executive
Officer, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and two Board Directors, one of which 1s also a member of the
Audit Committee The Risk Committes meets at least on a quarterly basis or as frequently as may be
required and reports its achons and recommendations to the Board at least on an annual basis The Risk
Committee collaborates with the Audit Committee in terms of providing assurance on the effectiveness of
the Company's nsk management structures and reviewing disclosures regarding nsk contained in the
Company's Annual Report.

2) Management Committees
Senior Management Team

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the CEO led the Senior Management Team and reported directly
to the Board The Semor Management Team s made up of the Chief Officers responsible for the Finance,
Commercial, Organisational Development, Fhight Operations, Engineenng and Information Systems
departments as well as the Chief Restructunng Officer (CRO) Members from the Project Management
Office are also requested to atiend from time to time The Senior Management Team meeting IS
convened on a weekiy basis and concentrated mamnly on

s implementing corporate strategy and making recommendations on significant corporate strategic
nitratives,

« developing the Company’'s annual budget and business plan and recommending 1t to the Board
for approval,

« managing the Company's day lo day operatons in accordance with the Board approved
authonsations, policies, procedures, budget and business plan,

« monitoning the Company's performance and reports monthly to the Board on key performance
indicators manly through the regular updating of the corporate dashboard and the presentation of
detatled management accounts, and

« organizational development tssues, including directing the negotiations with unions on collective
agreements and restructunng agreements, ensuring transparency and good governance are
mamtained in these processes

The appointed Secretary circulates the agenda and the minutes for each meeting
Financial Risk Committee

The Financial Risk Committee provides the framework for the management of the Company’s financial
nsks, and provides specific guidance on the management of liquidity, interest rate, foreign exchange,
commodity pncing (fuel and emissions) and credit exposures

The key objectives and responsibilities of the Financial Risk Commitiee relate to

« developing, reviewing and maintaining a funding strategy for the Company, with a view to ensure
proper funding of the Company’s business activites, .

» providing guidelines and ensuning control of financial nsks emanating from fuel pnce volatlity,
interest rate nsk and exchange rate nsk,

» providing guidance on managing hquidity nisk through regular review of cash flow performance,

» monitoring credit nsk of existng major counterparties and extent of credit nsk concentration,

« authonsing the adoption and acquisiton of Investment instruments, nsk hedging instruments and
related denvatives, and
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Corporate Governance Statement - continued
Financial Risk Committee - continued

= recommending to the Board ways n which the financial position can be developed through
Treasury activites This includes ensurng that the structure of the Company's statement of
financial positon 1s appropnate in terms of funding mix and gearnng, capital adequacy and
financial nsk management policy

The Financial Risk Committee comprises both internal executives and external non-executive consultants
with a view to reach balanced and informed decisions on the subject-matter Meetings are held on a

regular basis and are chaired by the Company's Chief Financial Officer The Committee reports directly to
the Board of Directors

Internal Audit

The Company promotes the independence of the function as a whole and allows internal audit to form an
objective judgement Intemnal audit has free and unresincted access to management, employees,
actvities, physical locations and to all nformation considered necessary for the proper execution of the
internal audit's work, at the discretion of the Head of Internal Audit The Head of Internal Audit reports to
the Audit Commuttee

Internal Audit 1s an independent, objective assurance and consulting activity designed to add value to the
Company's operations It helps Air Malta p 1 ¢ and the Audit Committee in accomplishing its objectives by
bringing a systematic, disciphned approach to evaluate and improve the effechveness of nsk
management, control and governance processes.

External Audit

The Audit Committee makes recommendations to the Board in relation to the appointment of the external
auditor, the audit fee, the terms of engagement and any questions of resignation or dismissal thereof The
Committee also momtors and reviews annually the external auditor's independence, objectwity and
effectiveness The Commilttee reviews the nature and extent of non-audit services rendered by the

auditors and oversees that the provision of such services I1s in ine with regulations and best governance
practice

The nature and scope of the audit are discussed with the Audit Committee prior to the commencement of
the statutory audit Likewise, any audit i1ssues ansing dunng the course of the audit are discussed by the
auditors with the Audit Committee

tnvestment Committee

The Investment Committee was established in November 2011 to provide project govermnance to ensure
that all business projects within Air Maltap I c:

e are aligned with Air Malta p.lc ‘s strategic objectives and restructunng plan,

+ have appropnate business ownership,

e are being managed well and in accordance the requirements of Govemance across the
Company, .

» are making opttmum and appropnate use of corporate resource, and the spend proposed Is in ling
with the restructunng plan, and

» will deliver the banefits forecast in the project’'s business case

10
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AIR MALTA p.lc.
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Corporate Governance Statement - continued
investment Committae - continued

The Investiment Committee 1s composed of the CEQ, the CRO, the Chief Commercial Officer (CCQ), the
Head of Project Managament Office and the CFO Since establishment the Investment Committee met
four imes in the financial year ending 31 March 2012

Flight Safety Committee

The main objectives of the Flight Safety Committee are to instigate preventive systems and procedures
within the Company in order to prevent accident or incident in relation to aircraft operation and assist the
Head of Safety and Compliance in any investigation that may become necessary

Besides fiight operations, the areas covered by the Flight Safety Committee include ground operations
involving passengers and goods and other technical ground operations

The Flight Safety Committee meetings are chaired by the Head of Safety and Compliance and are
attended by the CEO and Chief Officers or Heads of the Fhght Operations, Ground Operations,
Engineenng and Mantenance, In-fight Services, Organisational Development and Intemal Control
departments

The Flight Safety Committee has since December 2011 been convened on a monthly basis
Internal Controls

The Directors acknowledge therr responsibility for the Company’s systems of intemmal control which are
designated to ensure effective and efficient operations, including financial reporting and compliance with
laws and regulations and for reviewing their effectiveness. In establishing and reviewing the systems, the
Directors have regard to the matenality of relevant nsks, the likelihood of a loss being incurred and the
costs of control It follows therefore that such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against matenal misstatement or loss The key procedures that have been established to date
to provide eflecive internal control inciude

s an independent and professional Board which meets at least on a monthly basis and has
separate Chairman and CEO roles,
weekly Senior Management meetings,
an Audit Committee which approves audit plans and considers significant control matters raised
by the intemal and external auditors together with management,

a Risk Committes that assists the Board in fulfilling its nsk management responsibilities,

a Financial Risk Management Committee that prowides oversight and guidance in the financial
nsk dentification process and ensures proper analysis, evaluation, mitigation and management
raporting and monitoring of matenal financial nsks,

s an internal audit function which reviews key financial/operational processes and controls which
reports directly to the Audit Commuttee,

« an Investment Committee which provides assurance thal projects are being managed well and 1n
accordance the requirements of governance across the Company,

+ a Flight Safety Committee that provides the framework for incident or accdent prevention
processes and incident investigation and reporting processes covering all areas relating to arrcraft
operatian
clearty defined organisation structure and imits of authonty,

a comprehensive system of internal financial reporting which includes the preparation of detailed
monthly management accounts prowiding financial and operational performance measure
indicators to management,

1
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Corporate Governance Statement - continued
Internal Controls - continued

« the business agenda 1s determined by the Business Plan which represents the operational and
financial evaluaton of the corporate strategy, identifying and priontsing improvement
opportunibes to achieve financial budgets and service standards,

» mformation systems are develaped to support the Company's long-term objeclives

The Board confirms that the above processes were In place duning the year under review or as otherwise
mdicated in the respective sections of the Corporate Governance Statement as a result of the
restructuring process that s taking place within the Company and that the information it received was
sufficiont to enable it to review the effectiveness of the Company's system of intemal control The Board
shall continue to monitor the appropriateness of the internal control systems in place in ight of ensuring
such controls to best current practice.

12
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Air Maltap I ¢
Report on the Financial Statements for the year anded 31 March 2012

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the consolidated and the standalone parent Company financal statements of Arr Malta
p | ¢ (together the “financial statements”™), on pages 15 to 98, which compnse the consolidated and parent
Company statement of financial positron as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated and parent Company
statements of ncome, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and ather explanatory information

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

As explained more comprehensively 1n the Statement of directors’ responsiblities for the financial
statements on page 5, the directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a
true and far view In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the EU and the requirements of the Maltese Compames Act, 1995 and for such intermnal control as the
directors determine 1s necessary to enable the preparaton of financial statements that are free from
matenal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

Auditor's Responstbifity

Our responsibility 1s to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audt We
conducted our audit in accordance with Internatonal Standards on Audting. Those Standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from matenal misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the nsks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
emor In making those nsk assessments, the auditor considers iternal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of financial statements that give a true and farr view In order to design audit procedures that
are appropnate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinign on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control An audit also includes evaluating the appropnateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained i1s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements
*« gwve a true and farr view of the financial position of the Group and parent Company as at 31
March 2012, and of the Group's and the parent Company's financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with {IFRSs as adopted by the EU; and
¢ have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Maltese Companies Act,
1995

13
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Independent auditor’s report - continued
Emphasis of Matter

Without quaiifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 1 1 that deals with the basis of preparation of
these financial statements, which addresses developments in connection with the approval by the
European Commission of the Company’s Restructunng Plan and the mphed Restructunng Aid, consisting
of a capital increase of €130 milllon This matter I1s considered to be of fundamental importance to the
users’ understanding of the financial statements bacause of the nature of these developments and the
impact they have on the basis of preparation of these financial statements

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We also have responsibilities under the Maltese Companies Act, 18985 to repaort to you if, In our opmion
« The information given in the directors’ report I1s not consistent with the financial statements

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept, or that returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us

= The financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

s We have not receved zll the information and explanations we require for our audit.

e Certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made in the financial
statements, giving the required particulars in our report

We have nothing to report to you in respect of these responsibihties

PricewaterhouseCoopers
167 Merchants Street

Valletta
Malta

(P

Fabio Axisa
Partner

19 July 2012
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Statements of financial position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Investment property

Intangible assets

Investments in subsidianes
Investments in associates
Deferred tax assels
Available-for-sale financial assets
Amount owed by ultimaie shareholder
Other receivables

Term placements with banks

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventones

Trade receivables

Amounts owed by subsidianes
Amounts owed by associates
Amounts owed by related parties
Current tax assets

Other receivables

Prepayments and accrued income
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
Denvative financial instruments
Term placements with banks
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets classified as held for sale

Total current assets

Total assets

Notes

14
15

10
1
16
17

18

As at 31 March

2012 2011 2012 201

Group Company
€000 €000 €000 €000
4,782 56,520 4,782 56,000
47 15,477 47 15977
2,144 - 2,144 -
- - 1,805 1,863
- 639 - 225
- 124 - -
107 268 107 107
486,200 - 48,200 -
5,540 4,938 5,540 4,938
439 1,239 - -
59,259 79,205 60,625 79,110
1,400 1,711 1,400 1,711
23,694 21,749 23,694 21,804
- - 2,320 14
223 245 223 245
452 710 452 451
867 864 667 849
3,336 4,609 3,244 3,931
3,249 4,184 3,156 3,998
518 1,167 - -
5,072 650 5,072 650
2,138 4,617 - -
20,328 23,51 17,574 22,915
61,076 64,037 57,802 56,568
8,370 7,914 283 4,323
69,446 71,951 58,085 60,891
128,705 151,156 118,710 140,001

15



AIR MALTA p.lc.
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Statements of financial position - continued
As at 31 March

Notes 2012 2011 2012 201
Group Company
€000 €000 €000 €000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 19 25,892 25,892 25,892 25,892
Share premtum 20 42,762 42,762 42,762 42,762
Revaluaton reserve 21 13,868 13,868 13,868 13,868
Hedging reserve 22 3,005 {187) 3,095 (187)
Other reserve 23 (3,497) {3,497) . -
Accumulated losses (185,063) (147,682) (195,190) (158,838)
Total equity (103,843) (68.844) (109,573) (74,503)
Non-current liabilitles
Bomowings 24 10,000 4,000 10,000 4,000
Provisions in respect of maintenance costs 26 37,180 32,885 37,180 32,885
Other payables 6,498 7,881 5,575 6,699
Total non-current habilities 53,688 44,766 52,785 43,584
Current liabllities
Trade payables 20,043 23,216 20,043 21,770
Amounts owed to subsidianes . - 5,045 5615
Amounts owed to associates 134 102 134 102
Amounts owed to related parhes 2,090 2,400 2,080 2,400
Sales in advance 39,452 40,568 39,488 40,717
Current tax habiltties 342 425 - -
Other payables 3,442 2,470 3,343 2,454
Indirect taxation and social secunty 1,280 932 1,280 925
Accruals and deferred income 16,013 15,474 15,989 15,130
Borrowings 24 58,156 48,987 56,156 48,987
Denvative financial instruments 11 312 795 312 795
Provisions in respect of maintenance costs 26 3,506 3,407 3,506 3,407
Provision In respect of restructuring costs 283 2 26,814 28,200 26,814 28,200
Other provisions 27 418 418 418 418
170,002 167,394 175,518 170,920
Liabilihes directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale 18 8,858 7.840 - -
Total current habiibes 178,860 175,234 175,518 170,920
Total habihities 232,548 220,000 228,283 214,504
Total aquity and liabilities 128,705 151,156 118,710 140,001

The notes on pages 22 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

The financial statements on pages 15 to 98 were authonsed f

were signed on its behalf by

MAL £Q.g,9

Louis A Farrugia
Chairman

Alison‘Attard
Director

1ssue by the Board on 19 July 2042 and
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Income statements

Year ended 31 March

Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Company
€000 €000 €000 €000
Continuing operations:
Revenue 281 214,076 201,586 214,101 207,496
Cost of sales 28 2 (215,909) (223,800) (217,318) (231 ,165)
Gross result (1,833) (22,314)  (3,218) (23.669)
Selling and distnbution costs 282 (17,215)  (24,540) ({17,215) (24,540)
Admurustrative expenses 28 2 (13,827) (19.236) (13,728) (19,175)
Losses from changes in fair value of
investment property 6 - {4,426) - (4,426)
Other operating ncome 119 6,038 119 6,045
Operating loss (32,756) (64.480) (34,040) (65,765)
Operating loss before restructuring costs (28,517) (32,780) (29,801) [34,065)
\Restructuring costs 2831 (4,238) (31,700) {4,239) (31,700}
Kperating loss after restructuning costs (32,756) (64,480) (34,040) (65769)
Investment and other related income 30 (334) {555) 3,692 (323)
Results of subsidianes and associates KK} | - 655 - -
Finance income 32 31 165 {113) 18
Finance costs 33 (4,571) (1.682) (4,590) {1,692)
L oss before tax (37,830) (65.897) (35,051) (B7,762)
Tax income/(expense) 34 2,048 (10,993) 1,699 (10,583}
Loss for the year from continulng operations (35,584) (76,880) (33,352} (78,345)
Discontinued operations:
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations 18 (2,879) (1,404) {5,000) (10,509)
Loss for the year (38,463) (78,294) (38,352) (BB.854)
The notes on pages 22 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Statements of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March

Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Company
€000 €000 €000 €000
Loss for the year {38,483) (78,294) (38,352) (88,854)
Other comprehensive income:
Adjustments to surplus arising on revaluation
of land and buildings, net of deferred tax 21 . (8,763) - (8,763)
Reversal of deferred tax ansing on
revaluation of land and buildings 21 - 4,853 - 4,853
Cash flow hedges, net of deferred tax 22 3,282 (2,066) 3,282 (2,066)
Currency translation differences 182 (93} - -
Other comprehensive income .
for the year, net of tax 3,464 (6,069) 3,282 (5,976)
Total comprehensive income for
the year {34,999) (84,363) {35,070) (94,830)

The notes on pages 22 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Statements of changes in equity

Group
Share  Shere Hedging Revaluation Other Accumulated Total
Notes capital premium reserve reserve reserve lcsses  Equity
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Balance at 1 Apnl 2010 25892 42,762 1,879 17,778  (3.497) (69,205) 15,519
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - (78,294) (75,294)
Other comprehensive income.
Adjustment to surplus arising on
revaluation of land and buildings,
net of deferred {ax 21 - - - (8,763) - - {(8,763)
Reversal of defarred tax ansing on
revaluation of land and buikiings 21 - - - 4,853 - - 4,853
Cash flow hedges, net of deferred tax 22 - - (2,086) - - - (2,066)
Curmrency translation differences - - - - - (93) (93)
Total cthar comprehensive income . - {2,066) (3,810) - (83} (6,069)
Total comprehensive income - - (2,088) {3,910) - (78,387) (84,363)
Balance at 31 March 2011 25,882 42,762 (187) 13,868 (3.497) (147,682) (68,844)
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - - (38,4683} (38.4€3)
Other comprehensive Income”
Cash flow hedges, net of deferred tax =~ 22 - - 3,282 - - - 3,282
Currency translation differences . - - - - 182 162
Total othar comprehansiva income - - 3,282 - - 182 3.464
Total comprehensive Income - - 3,282 - - (38,281) (34,999)
Balance at 31 March 2012 25,892 42,702 3,005 13,868 (3.497) {185,963) (103,843)

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment n foreign Group entties were
deemed mmatenal and accordingly have been taken to accumulated losses
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Statements of changes In equity - continued

Company
Share Share Hedging Revatuation Accumulated Total
Notes capital premium reserve reserve losses equity
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Balance at 1 Apnl 2010 25,892 42,762 1,879 17,778 (67.984) 20,327
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year - - - - (88,854)  (88,854)
Other comprehensive income-
Adjustment to surplug ansing on
revaluation of land and buildings, net
of deferred tax 21 - - - (8,763) - (8,763)
Reversal of deferred tax arising on )
revaluation of fand and buildings 21 - - - 4,853 4,853
Cash flow hedges, net of deferred tax 22 - - {2,066) - - (2,088)
Total other comprehensive incoma - - (2,066) (3,910) - (5,976)
Total comprehensive iIncome - - (2,066) {3.910) (88,854) (94,830)
Balance at 31 March 2011 25,892 42,762 (187) 13,868 (158,838) (74,503)
Comprehensive Income
Loss for the year - - - - (38,352) (38,352)
Other comprehensive income:
Cash flow hedges, net of deferred tax 22 - - 3,282 - - 3,282
Total other comprehensive income - - 3,282 - - 3,282
Total comprehensive Income - - 3,282 - (38,352) (35,070)
Balance at 31 March 2012 25,892 42,762 3,095 13,368 (195,190} {109,573)

The notes on pages 22 to 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Annual Report and Cansolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Stataments of cash flows

Year ended 31 March

Notes 2012 2011 2012 2011
Group Company
€000 €000 €000 €000
Cash flows from operating activitles
Cash used in operations 38 (36,279) (18,439) (38,572) (18,144)
Investment and other related income receved 240 215 {18) 68
Dividends received from substdianes - - 4,981 -
Dividends received from associates 210 225 210 225
Interest paid and similar charges {4,838) (2,179) {4,721) {1.986)
Tax pad {1,165) (340) (667) -
Tax refunded 1,558 454 849 371
Net cash used in operating activihes (40,274) (20,064) (37,938) (19,466)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of tangible and intangible assets (232) (6.921) (243) (6,880)
Proceeds from sale of tangible assets 20,000 14,533 20,000 14,533
Proceeds from sale of investments
classified as hsld for sale - 308 - 308
Loans granted to subsidianes and associates - - (182) (80)
Loan repayments received from subsihanes
and associates - 46 - 235
Acquisihon of availlable-for-sale financial assets (952) {1,595) - -
Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale
financial assets upon matunty 1,368 1,847 - -
Funds advanced under term placements {2,139) {853) - -
Proceeds from matunty of term placements 5417 1,061 - -
Net cash generated from invasting activities 23,460 8,328 49,595 8.116
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bank borrowings 10,884 7 10,000 -
Proceeds from shareholder’s loan 11,000 41,000 11,000 41,000
Repayments of bank borrowings {7,142} (13,483) (7,142) (13,123)
Net cash generated from financing activiies 14,742 27,524 13,858 27,877
Net movement in cash and cash equlvalents {2,072) 15,786 {4,485) 16,527
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 23,222 7,159 22,070 5.268
Exchange differences on cash and cash
equivalents {167) 277 (187) 277
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17 20,983 23,222 17,418 22,070
The notes on pages 22 1o 98 are an integral part of these consolidated financtal statements
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

1

Summary of significant accounting policies

The prncipal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated

1.1 Basis of preparation

These consohdated financial statements include the financoial siatements of Arr Malta pl.c and its
subsidianes The consohdated financral statements have been prepared in accordance with
Intsmational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and the requirements of
the Maltese Companies Act, 1995 They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
as modified by the fair valuation of the land and buildings category within property, plant and

equipment, nvestment property, avallable-for-sale financial assets and denvative financial
instruments

The preparation of financial statements m conformity with IFRSs as adopted by the EU requires the
use of certain accounting estimates It also requires the directors to exercise therr judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies (see Note 3 — Cnfical accounting estimates
and judgements)

1.1.1 Assessment of going concern

Arr Malta p | c. has been incumng losses on its core airine business for several years During the
financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Group incurred losses after tax from continuing operations
amounting to €356 milion (2011* €76 9 million) putting the Group’s equily base under further
strain The Group's labilities exceeded its assets as at 31 March 2012 by €103 8 million (2011
€68 8 mulion) and its current habililes exceeded its current assets by €69 ¢ million (2011 €627
milhon) as at that date, excluding the impact of sales in advance from the Group’s current liabilities

Restructuring Plan and Restructuring Ald

In order to address the commercial challenges the airline 15 facing, the Company's Restructunng
Plan was dewvised setting out the strategy to return the arline to positve financial results and a
positive net cash flow positon Dunng the curmrent financial year, the Government of Malta, as the
principal shareholder, has taken ownership of the Restructuring Plan and communicated this to the
European Commission, seeking Commission approval of the Plan and of the implied Restructunng
Aid

This Restructuning Plan sets out the turnaround strategy for the Company for the five-year penod
FY2012 to FY2016 The Plan was drawn up following the Govemment's notficaton — and
subsequent European Commussion approval — of the provision of a €52 milhion Rescue Aid Loan to
the Company According to the Restructunng Plan, a capital increase of €130 milion 1s required to
help restructure the Company, which has been in difficulty for several years

On 27 June 2012, the Eurcpean Commission has communicated rits decision confirming approval
of Restructunng Aid for Air Malta p | ¢ and it resolved that a €130 mithon aid amount to be granted
to the Company for its restructuring 1s In hine with EU state aid rules The Commssion observed
that the Restructunng Plan adequately addresses the financial problems of the Company The
restruclunng measures foreseen, which include a signficant capacity reduction and the sale of
assets, should ensure long-term viability without continued state support, whilst avoiding undue
distorhions of competition
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued
1.1.1 Assessment of going concern - continued

In accordance with its investigation, the Commission resolved that the Restructunng Plan is based
on reabstic assumptions and should enable Arr Malta p |l ¢ to become wiable within a reasonable
tmescale The Commission 1s satisfied that the proposed capacity reduction consistng in the
withdrawal from certain routes will avoid undue distortions of competiion Moreover, Air Maltap l ¢
will contnbute to the costs of restructunng by selling property and other assets, as wel} as securing
private bank borrowings.

The survival of the Company is intnnsically linked to the ability of the arine to rapidly and
successfully execute a range of cost and revenue initiatives as reflected in the Restructuning Plan
The Restructunng Plan shows that the existing level of losses can be turned around to breakeven
levels by FY2014 and to profitability by FY2015 Air Malta pl ¢ has already proceeded with the
implementation of inthatives contemplated within the Restructunng Plan as submitted to the
European Commisston for the approval of the Restructunng Aid, including

significant downsizing of the head count through Voluntary and Early Retirement Schemes,
implementation of a comprehensive change agenda of more than 160 projects covenng all
aspects of the airline,

. implementation of a more disaggregated and internet-based reservation/sales function in line
with the model adopted by other carners, and

. appointment of key executives with industry expertise

The effectiveness of the measures already taken has been reflected 1n the improved financial
results registered dunng the current financial year when compared to the preceding financial year
performance In view of the phased mplementation of the measures envisaged, the full benefit of
cost reductions has not been expenenced by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2012
This 15 expected to occur in the financial year ending 31 March 2013 further improving the
operating results registered Dunng the forthcoming financial year, the Company will pursue with
the implementation of the next measures and phases as envisaged in the Restructunng Plan

Financing of the Restructuring Plan

The Restructunng Plan refiects the strategy to return the arrline to a posiive net cash flow position
by the end of FY2014 This return to a positive net cash flow position will however require the
Company to sell its mamn remaining property assets The funding raised will then be employed In
the restructuring of the Company and supplemented by approved State Aid in the form of a capital
injectron The funding plan implied within the Restructunng Plan has been formally approved and
fully supported by the Govemment, as the Company's pnncipal shareholder To thus end the
Rescue Aid Loan from the pnncipal shareholder that was due for repayment in November 2011 has
been extended for a further penod to November 2012 or untl ocne month from the date on which
the Restructuning Plan has been finally determined and approved by the Commission, whichever Is
the earher

The pnncipal steps in the financing process, reflected within the Plan and accordingly approved by
the European Commussion, are the following

. On 7 December 2011, a Promise of Sale Agreement to dispose of the pnncipal property,
constituting the remaining main asset owned by the Company, for an amount of €66 2 million
has been entered into with Govermnment A depasit of €20 million has been pad by
Government during January 2012
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.1 Basis of preparation - continued
1.1.1 Assessment of golng concern - continued

. Simultaneously, the Company has successfully negotiated fresh bank loans amounting to
€30 millon These facilities are secured on the Promise of Sale Agreement referred to above
and will be repaid through the sale proceeds In addition, faciities of €20 milhon will be
required dunng the later part of the 5 year plan

. The disposal process of the Company’s subsidianes and other strategic investments, which
have been earmarked for sale, has progressed dunng the current financial year

. Government will make a fresh commercial loan of €52 million to the Company These funds
will be used by the Company to pay back the Rescue Aid Loan in line with the European
Commission’s Rescue and Restructunng Guidelines The commercial loan will be converted
to equity in the later part of the 5 year plan

. The Company will allocate €78 million of fresh equity to Government The capital will be
called up in tranches n due course in accordance with the programme established in the
Restructunng Plan

Overall assessment

Taking cogmisance of the approval by the European Commission of the Company’s Restructuring
Plan, it 1s the view of the directors that there 1s a reasonable expectation that the Company and the
Group are able to continue in operational existence for a pencd of at least 12 months from the end
of the reporting penod Accordingly, the directors contmue te adopt the going concem basis n
preparing the financial statements, ¢n the basis of

() the formal approval of the Plan by the Commission,

(n) the current level of commitment shown by the Government of Malta, including approval of
the imphed funding requirements,

(m} the financing arrangements already put into place; and

(v) the underlying assumption that the Restructunng Plan can be implemented in a tmely
manner and in accordance with its terms

1 1.2 Changes In accounting policy and disclosures

{a)  Standards, inlerpretations and amendments to pubhshed standards effective during the
current financial year

Duning the current financial year, the group adopted amendments and interpretations to existing
standards that are mandatory for the group's accounting penod beginning on 1 Apnl 2011, The
adoption of these revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU did not result in
substantial changes to the Group’s accounting policies
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued

1.1 Basis of preparation - continued

1.1.2 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures - continued

{b)  New standards, amendments and interpretations 1ssued but not yet effective

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been pubiished
by the date of authonsation for 1ssue of these financial statements but are mandatory for the
group's accounting penods beginning after 1 Apnl 2011 The group has not earty adopted these
revisions to the requirements of IFRSs as adopted by the EU and the company’s directors are of
the opinion that, with the exception of IFRS 9, ‘Financial nstruments’, there are no requirements
that will have a possible significant impact on the group’s financial statements in the penod of initial
apphcation

IFRS 9, ‘Financial instruments’, addresses the classification, measurement and recogrution of
financial assets and financial habdibes IFRS 9 was issued in Novernber 2009 and October 2010 1t
replaces parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of financial instruments
IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement categones those measured
at far value and those measured at amortised cost The determsnation 15 made at mtal
recogniion The classification depends on the entty's business model for managing s financial
instruments and contractual cash flow charactenstics of the instrument For financial habilibes, the
standard retains most of the IAS 39 raquirements The main change s that, in cases where the fair
value option Is taken for financial habilties, the part of a fair value change due tc an entity's own
credit nisk 1s recorded In other comprehensive ncome rather than the income statement, unless this
creates an accountng mismatch Subject to adoption by the EU, IFRS 9 15 effective for financial
penods beginring on, or after, 1 January 2015 The Group Is considering the implications of the
standard and 1ts impact on the group's financial results and position, together with the timing of its
adoption taking cognisance of the endorsement process by the European Commission

Also, IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by
providing a precise defimtion of farr value and 2 single scurce of far value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs The requirements do not extend the use of far
value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use 1s already
required or permitted by other standards The Group I1s yet to assess IFRS 13's full impact and
intends to adopt IFRS 13 no later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 Apnl 2013
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
12 Consolidation
(a) Subsidianes

Subsidianes, which are those companies in which the Group, directly or indirectly, has an interest
of more than one half of the voting nghts or otherwise has power to govern the financial and
operating policies are consolidated The existence and effect of potential voting nghts that are

presently exercisable or presently convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity

Subsidianies are fully consolidated from the date on which effective control 1s transferred to the
Group and are no longer consolidated from the date that control ceases The Group uses the
acquisiion method of accounting to account for business combinations The consideration
transferred for the acquisiion of a subsidiary 1s the far values of the assets transferred, the
habilities incurred and the equity interests 1ssued by the Group The consideration transferred
includes the farr value of any asset or lability resuiting from a contingent consideration
arrangement Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilties and contingent habihttes assumed in a business combination are measured imiwally at their
fair values at the acquisition date On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controling interest In the acquiree either at far value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
farr value of the \dentifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill If this is less than the farr
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference
1s recognised directly in profit or loss Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment and camed at cost
less accumulated impairment losses

Inter-company fransactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group
companies are ebminated Unrealised losses are also eliminated Accounting policies of
subsichanies have been ¢changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group

In the Company's separate financial statements, investments in subsidianes are accounted for by
the cost method of accounting, | @ al cost less y/mpairment Prowistons are recorded where, in the
opinicn of the directors, there is an impairment in value Where there has been an impairment in
the value of an investment, it 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which the diminution 1s
identified The results of subsidianes are reflected in the Company's separate financial statements
onty to the extent of dividends receivable. On disposal of an investment, the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount 1s charged or credited to profit or loss

A histing of the Group's pnncipal subsidianes Is set out in Note 41 1 to these financial statements

26




-

| .

{H =3

AIRMALTApic
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Summary of significant accounting poticies - continued
1.2 Consolidation - contnued
{b}  Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transachons with non-controling interests, where the acquisition or disposal of
partial interests in a subsidiary has no impact on the Group's ability to govern the subsidiary's
financial and operating policies, as transactions with equity owners of the Group For purchases
from non-controling imerests, the difference between any considerabon paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary s recorded in equity Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controliing interests are also recorded in equity

When the Group ceases to have control or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity 1s
remeasured to its fair value, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or lass The
far value Is the inibial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint veniure or financial asset In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income In respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets of lablites This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive iIncome are reclasstdied to profit or loss

(c) Associates

Associates are entites over which the Group generally has between 20% and 50% of the voting
rights, or over which the Group exercises significant influence, but which it does not control. 1n the
consolidated financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for by the equity
method of accounting and are inihally recognised at cost The Group’s investment in associates
includes goodwill identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated imparrment loss

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses Is recogmsed n profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised n other
comprehensive income The cumulative post-acquisihon movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest In the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent
of the Group's interest In the associates Unrealised losses are also elminated unless the
transaction prowides evidence of an impaitrment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.2 Consolidation - continued
(c}  Associates - continued

In the Company's saparate financial statements, investments in associates are accounted for by
the cost method of accounting, 1 @ at cost less imparment Provisions are recorded where, in the
opimon of the directors, there 15 an imparment in value. Where there has been an impairment in
the value of an investment, it 1s recognised as an expense in the penod in which the diminutien 1s
entfied The results of associates are reflected in the Company's separate financial statements
only to the extent of dividends receivable On disposal of an investment, the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount i1s charged or credited to profit or loss |f the
ownership Interest in an associate 15 reduced but significant influence s retamed, only a
proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are

reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate Dilution gains and losses ansing in nvestmenis m
associates are recognised In profit or loss

A histing of the Group's pnncipal associates is sst out in Note 41 2 to these financial statements
1.3  Foreign currencies
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entites are measured using the
currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the entty operates (‘the functional
currency’) The consclidated financial statements are presented in euro, which 1s the Company's
functional currency and the Group's presentation currency

{b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transachons are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured Foreign
exchange gains and losses resuling from the seftlement of such transactions, and from the
translation of monetary assets and habilites denominated in foreign currencies, are recogrised n
the income statement. Such balances are translated at year-end exchange rates

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within ‘finance income or cost’ All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statememt within ‘cost of sales’ and ‘administrative
expenses’

(c) Group companias

Income statements of foreign entities are translated nto the Group's presentation currency at the
average exchange rates for the year and statements of financial position are translated at the
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting pernod All resulting translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income

Exchange differences ansing from the translation of the net investment m foreign entities and of
borrowings are taken to other comprehensive income On disposal of a foreign entity, such
translation differences are recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale

Goodwill and farr value adjustments ansing on the acquisition of a foreign entty are treated as
assets and habilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate
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Summary of significant accounting policles - continued
1.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment comprising office property and other assets, are initally recorded at
historical cost. Land and bulldings, are subsequently shown at fair value, based on penodic
valuations by professional valuers, less subsequent depreciation for buildings Valuations are
carned out on a regular basis such that the carrying amount of property does not differ matenally
from that which would be determined usmng farr values at the end of the reporting penod Any
accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation s elminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset, and the net amount 1s restated to the revalued amount of the asset All other property,
plant and equipment 1s subsequently stated at historical cost less depreciation Histoncal cost
includes expenditure that 1s directly attnbutable to the acquisiton of the items Borrowing costs
which are incurred for the purpose of acquinng or constructing a qualifying asset are capitalised as
part of its cost Borrowing costs are capitahised while acqusition or construction is actvely
underway Capitahsation of borrowing costs 1s ceased ance the asset 1s substantially complete and
1s suspended if the development of the asset I1s suspended

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropnate, only when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits asscciated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured rehably Major modifications and
improvements to fixed assets are capitalised and depreciated over therr estwnated useful economic
lives All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
penod in which they are incurred

Increases In the carrying amount ansing on revaluatron of land and buildings are credited to other
comprehensive income and shown as a revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same asset are charged in other comprehensive ncome and
debited against the revaluation reserve directly In equity, all other decreases are charged to the
income statement Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to profit o loss and depreciation based on the asset's onginal cost is
transferred from the revaluation reserve {0 retained eamings

Depreciation 1s calculated using the straight-ine method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts
to therr residual values over their estmated useful operational lives, as follows.

) Bulldings held on a freehold basis are depreciated at 1% per annum Freehold land 1s not
depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite economic hife Properties held on long-term
leases are amortised over the penod of the respective leases

. In the case of arrcrafts, the related rotables, engines and major spares, which are used for
the Group's own fiight operations, are depreciated on two, three and twelve years
respectively

. Awrcraft and fuight equipment in respect of leased out assets are depreciated over therr
estimated operational lives of 20 years, with residual values being taken as 10%

. The estimated useful lives of equipment, motor vehicles and other assets, held at hotels and
otherwise, vary from 3 to 20 years, depending on their nature

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropnate, at the end of
each reporting period
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.4 Property, plant and equipment - continued

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An asset's camying
amount 15 wnitten down immediately to its recoverable amount f the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its eshmated recoverable amount An imparrment loss 1s recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount The recoverable amount 1s the
higher of an asset's far value less costs to sell and value in use For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately rdentfiable cash
flows (cash-generating units) Property, plant and equipment that suffered an impairment 1s
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting peniod

Gains and losses on disposals of property, plant and equipment are determined by companng
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in the income statement. When revalued assets
are disposed of, the amounts included in the revaluaton reserve relating to the assets are
transferred to retained earmings

1.5 Investment property

Property that 1s held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that s not
occupied by the Group 1s classified as investment property Investment properly also includes
praperty that 1s being constructed or developed for future use as investment property, when such
identification 1s made. Investment property principally compnses land and buildings

Investment property 1s measured inibally at its historical cost, including related transaction costs
and borrowing costs Histoncal cost includes expendture that i1s directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items Borrowing costs which are incurred for the purpose of acquinng or
constructing a qualifying investment property are capitalised as part of its cost Borrowing costs are
capitalised while acquisition or construchon is actively underway Capitalisation of borrowing costs
18 ceased once the asset 1s substanbally complete and is suspended if the development of the
asset 1s suspended After intial recognition, investment property 1s camed at far value,
representing open market value determined annually Farr value 1s based on active market prices,
adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset If
this information 1s not available, the Group uses altemative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections

These valuations are reviewed annually by a professtonal valuer Investment property that i1s being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property or for which the market has become less
active contnues to be measured at far value. Far value measurement on property under
construction 1s only applied if the fair value 1s considered o be reliably measurable The far value
of investment property reflects, among cther things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the hght of current market condiions The
fair value also reflects, on a smilar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property

Subsequent expendilure 15 capitalised to the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged to profit or loss
dunng the financial penad in which they are incurred When part of an investment property 1s
replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part 1s derecognised
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.5 Investment property - continued

The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that wili improve or
enhance the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure
other than those a rational market participant would take into account when determining the value
of the property

Changes in farr values are racogrused in the income statement. Investment properties are
derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when the nvestment property s
permanently withdrawn from use and no future ecanomic benefit 1s expected from its disposal

if an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it 1s reclassified as property, plant and
equipment lts farr value at the date of the reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting purposes When the Group decides to dispose of an investment property without
development, the Group continues to treat the property as an investment property Similarly, if the
Group begins to redevelop an existing investment property for continued future use as Investment
property, it remains an investment property dunng the redevelopment

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has
changed, any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this iten at the
date of transfer 1s treated in the same way as a revaluation under |IAS 168 Any resulting increase in
the carrying amount of the property I1s recognised in the income statement io the extent that it
reverses a previous impament loss, with any remaning increase recogrused In other
comprehensive income, directly to revaluation surplus within equity. Any resulting decrease in the
carrying amount of the property 15 initially charged to other comprehensive income against any
previously recognised revaluation surplus, with any remaining decrease charged to the income
statement Upon the disposal of such mvestment property, any surplus previously recorded in
equity is transferred to retained eamings, the transfer 1s not made through the income statement

Where an investment property undergoes a change In use, evidenced by commencement of
development with a view to sale, the property 1s transferred to inventones A property’s deemed
cost for subsequent accounting as inventories 1s its far value at the date of change in use

1.6 Intangible assets
Emussion rights

Emission nghts represent the right of the operator of one or mors aircraft to emit greenhouse
gases, more specifically carbon dioxide, in the course of its operations. Emission nghts are
allocated by the competent authonty to the Group for no consideration in accordance with the
European Community Greenhouse Gas Emissions Trading Scheme for Aviation Regulations, 2010

The Group recognises the emission rights granted by the competent authonty as an intangible
asset measured at far value as at the date of the grant based on quoted market pnces These
grants measured at far value are presented n the statement of financial posiion as deferred
income and are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the penod in which the entty
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate, 1€
over the compliance period for which the allowances were 1ssued

Emissions surpassing the allotment by the competent authonty have to be covered by the purchase
of additional greenhouse gas emission nghts Purchased emission allowances are recognised at
cost
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.6 Intangible assets - continued
Emission nights - continued

Emission allowances are not amortised taking cognisance of the residual value, based on quoted
prices These nghts are not revalued but tested for impairment whenever indicators exist that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable

The Group 1s responsible for determining and reporting the amount of grasnhouse gas emissions
produced by the arcraft  operates i the calendar year. As emussions are produced, a hability is
recognised for the obligation to deliver allowances equal to emissions that have been produced
This habibty shall be measured at the best estimate of the expendilure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period

1.7 Impairment of non-flnancial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impaiment Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable An
impairment loss 1s recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount The recoverable amount i1s the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell
and value in use For the purposes of assessing /mpaiment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identfiable cash flows {(cash-generating umits) Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an imparment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date

1.8 Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when ther camying amount Is to be
recovered principally through a sale transachion and a sale 1s considered fughly probable They are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell

19 Financial assets
Clagsification

The Group classifies its financial assets, other than denvatives, in the following categones loans
and receivables and available-for-sale The classificaton depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
inhad recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting date, in those circumstances
where the Group i1s permitted to reclassify under the requirements of {AS 38

{2) Loans and recevables

Loans and receivables are non-denvative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted tn an active market They are included in current assets, except for matuntes
greater than tweive months after the end of the reporting penod These are classified as non-
current assets
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1.

Summary of significant accounting poficies - continued
1.9 Financlal assets - continued

Classification - continued

(b) Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Availlable-for-sale financial assets are non-denvatives that are either designated in this category or
not classified in any of the other categones Investments intended to be held for an indefinite period
of time, which may be sold in response to needs for iquidity or changes in inferest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices are classified as avallable-for-sale assets They are included in non-current
assets unless the asset matures or management intends to dispose of it within twelve months from
the end of the reporting period

Recognition and measurement

The Group recognises a financial asset in its statement of financial position when it becomes a
party to the centractual provisions of the instrument Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on seftlement date, which is the date on which an asset 1s delivered to or by
the Group Any change in fair value for the asset to be receved 1s recognised between the trade
date and settlement date in respect of assets which are carmed at far value in accordance with the
measurement rules applicable to the respective financial assets

Financial assets are intially recognised at fair valua plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carned at fair value through profit or loss

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recogmsed on trade date - the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset Availlable-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently camed at fair velue Loans and recewables are subsequently camed at amortised
cost using the effective interest method Amortised cost 1s the imitial measurement amount adjusted
for the amortisation of any difference between the nitial and matunty amounts using the effective
mnterest method

Financial assets are derecognised when the nghts to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantaily all nsks and
rewards of ownership or has not retained control of the asset

Changes In the far value of monetary securites denominated i a foreign currency and classified
as avallable-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resultng from changes in
amortised cost of the asset and other changes in the carrying amount of the asset The translaton
differences on monetary assets are recognised in the income statement, and translation difference
on non-monetary assets are recogrused in other comprehensive inctome The other changes in the
fair value of monetary and non-monetary assets classified as avatlable-for-sale are recogmsed in
other comprehensive income

The farr values of quoted investments are based on curmrent bid pnces If the market for a financial
asset ts not actve (and for unlisted secunties), the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
technigues, In most cases by reference to the net asset backing of the investee

When assets classified as avalable-for-sale are sold or impared, the accumulated far value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the income statement within ‘Investment and other
related income’. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised In the iIncome
statement within ‘Investment and other related income' when the Group’s nght to receve payment
Is established
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Summary of significant accounting policies - conhnued
19 Financlal assets - continued
Impairment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there 1s objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets s imparred A financial asset or a group of financial
assets 1s impared and impairment losses are incurred only if there 15 objective evidence of
impairment as a rasult of one or more events that occurred after the imbial recognition of the asset
(a loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be rehably estimated The Group first
assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists The cnteria that the Group uses to
determine that there 1s objective ewdence of an impairment loss include

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor,
. a breach of contract, such as a default or delinguency in interest or principal payments,
it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisahon

{a) Assets carned at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estmaled future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's
original effective interest rate The asset’s carrying amount 1s reduced and the amount of the loss is
recogrsed in the income statement, If, n a subsequent penod, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively 1o an event occurnng after the impairment
was recognised (such as an :mprovement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss IS recognised in the income statement.

(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

In the case of equity Investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline
in the farr value of the secunty below its cost 1s considered an indicator that the assets are
mpaired If objective evidence of impairment exists for avalable-for-sale financial assets, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between the acquisiton cost and the current fair
value, less any imparment loss on that financial asset previously recognised m the income
statement — 1s reclassified from equity to the mcome statement as a reclassification adjustment
Imparment losses recogrised in profit or loss on equity instruments are not reversed through the
ncome statement

1.10 Leased assets

Where a Group 15 the lessee and assumes substantially all the benefits and nsks of ownership,
leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases Finance leases are
capitabsed at the estmated present value of the underiying lease payments Each lease payment
ts allocated between the hability and finance charges so as to achiseve a constant rate on the
finance balance outstanding The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are
included in other long-temn payables The interest element of the finance charge 1s charged to profit
or loss over the lease pernod The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leasing
contracts 1s depreciated over the usaful Iife of the asset

Leases of assets under which all the nsks and benefits of ownership are effectively retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases Payments made under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the penod of the lease
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.11 Maintenance of aircraft
Costs for routine atrcraft mamntenance as well as repair costs are charged to the income statement

Major non-routine airframe maintenance and engine overhauls incurred on owned aircraft are
capitalised and wntten off over the useful economic Iife of the components incurred

in relation to leased arrcraft govermned by an operating lease agreement which states that the onus
of major non-routine maintenance duning the Iife of the lease rests with the lessee together with
strict re-delivery conditions, the Company has a legal obligation to carry oul maintenance on these
arrcraft Maintenance provisions are therefore set up for major non-routine mantenance and
overhauls as well as costs estimated to be incurred on re-dalivery of the arrcraft to the lessor
These costs are reviewed on an annual basis to ensure they reflect the estimated awcraft
maintenance programme and are charged over the unexpired term of the lease

112 Inventories

inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost 1s determined by the
weighted average method Cost is the invoiced value of goods and in general includes transport
and handling costs. Rotables, engines and major spares are accounted for as fixed assets and are
depreciated on the same basis as the awrcraft to which they relate Net realisable value 1s the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable vanable selling
expenses

113 Trade and other recelvables

Trade recewvables compnse amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary
course of business If collection 1s expected in one year or less {or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer), they are classified as current assets If not, they are presented as non-
current assets

Trade and other receivables are recognised initally at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment {note 1 9) The
carmying amount of the asset ts reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount
of the loss 1s recognised in the income statement When a receivable 1s uncollectible, it is wntten off
against the allowance account for trade and other receivables Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously wntten off are credited against the income statement

1 14 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are camed in the statement of financial positton at face value. in the
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term deposits with matunties of three months or less from the end of the
reporting penod and bank overdrafts. The bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
habilites in the statement of financial positon
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.15 Financial liabilities

The Group recogrises a financial habiity in its statement of financial positon when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument The Group's financial habiities, other than
denvatives, are classified as financial liabilites which are not at fair value through profit or loss
(classified as "Other habilities’) under IAS 39 Financial habilihes not at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised wuhally at farr value, being the far value of consideration received, net of
fransaction costs that are directly attnbutable to the acquisition or the tssue of the financial hability
These liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost The Group derecognises a financial
habiity from tts statement of financial postion when the obligation specified in the contract or
arrangement 1s discharged, 1s cancelled or expires

1.16 Trade and other payables

Trade payables comprise cbligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the
ordinary course of business from suppliers Accounts payable are classified as current iabilities f
payment 1s due within one year or less (or in the narmat opaerating cycle of the business i langer)
not, they are presented as non-current liabilies

Trade and other payables are recognised mally at far value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method

1.17 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recogmsed imtially at the fair value of procesds received, net of transaction costs
ncurrad Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recogrised in the income
statement over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Borrowings are classified as current liabiliies unless the Group has an uncondional nght to defer
settlement of the lhability for at least twelve months after the end of the reporting pencd

Interest costs are charged agamnst income without restniction No borrowing costs have been
capitalised .

1.18 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is provided n full, using the habihity method, on temporary drfferences ansing between
the tax bases of assets and habilities and thewr carrying amounts in the financial statements
However, deferred tax liabiites are not recognised if they anse from the mitial recogniton of
goodwill, the deferred income tax 1s not accounted far if it anses from initial recogrutron of an asset
or habiity in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transacton
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss Deferred tax s determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting penod and are
expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liabihity is
settied.

36




-~ -

— 1

AR MALTAPplc
Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
118 Defarred taxation - continued

The pnncipal temporary differences anse from depreciation on property, plant and equipment,
revaluations of derivalive contracts, provisions and tax losses camed forward, and i relation to
acquisitions, on the difference between the fair values of the net assets acquired and therr tax
base

Deferred tax assets relating to the carry forward of frading losses are recogrised to the extent that
it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses can be
utlised Deferred tax assets relating to capital losses on investments in subsidianes and associates
are only recognised to the extent to which they are offset by deferred tax liabiites of a capital
nature or to the extent to which they can be expected to matenalise in the foresesable future

119 Employee benefits
Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits The Group recognises terminaton benefits when it 1s demonstrably commuitted to a
termination when, and only when, the entity has a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment
of current employees without the possibiity of withdrawal In the case of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the number of
employees expected to accept the offer Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end of
the reporting penod are discounted to therr present value

120 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, it 1s more likely than not that an outflow of rescurces will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an msurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain

The Group recognises a provision for onercus contracts when the expected benefits to be derived
from a contract are less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract

1.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue I1s based on the invoiced value of camage uplifted, arcraft leasing income, goods sold
and services rendered, net of discounts, and exclusive of passenger and indirect taxes Revenue is
recognised when the service has been provided or when the nsk has passed to the customer
Ticket sales are included under current habihities as sales in advance untll recognised as revenue
once a passenger coupon or arfreight document has been used The gross sales value of any
tickets remaining unused Is taken to profit or loss as residual revenue lo the extent to which no
llability is expected to anse n relation thereto,
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Summary of significant accounting policles - continued
1.21 Revanua racognition - continued

Proceeds ansing from the sale of fixed assets, including aircraft, are not included with revenue
Other revenues eamed by the Group are recognised on the following bases

. Interest iIncome — Interest Income is recognised In the iIncome statement for all interest-
bearing instruments as it accrues, on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest
method, unless collectability 1s in doubt.

. Dividend income — Dividend income 1s recogrmsed when the nght to receive payment 1s
established
. Rental income from investment property - Rental income 1s recogrised sn the income

statement, on a straight-hne basis over the term of the lease, as t accrues unless
collectability 1s 1n doubt

1.22 Sale and leaseback transactions

Profits arising on the disposal of aircraft and other assets an a sale and leaseback basis are
credited to the income statement except in cases where such profits are considered to anse at the
expensea of iIncremental costs which would be incurred in future periods In such cases a portion of
the profit, normally corresponding to the net incremental future costs, would be deferred and taken
to profit or loss in future perods to match the related costs

1.23 Obligations under bonus mile programmes

Calculation of the obligations ansing from bonus miles programmes 1s based on several estimates
and assumptions Accumulated but as yet unused bonus miles are deferred using the deferred
revenue method to the extent that they are likely to be used on the Group's flights The fair value of
miles accumulated on the Group's own flights is recognised under deferred revenue Fair value s
determined as the value for which the miles could be sold separately, 1 e the average yield, taking
booking class and traffic region into account No prowisions are recognised for miles that are
expected to lapse The quota of miles that have been allowed to lapse in the past i1s used to
estimate the number of miles that will probabty lapse subject to current expiry rules

1.24 Darlvative financlal instruments and hedging

Denvative financial instruments including forward foreign exchange contracts, commodity oplions
(combined written and purchased options together with other options), commodity swaps and other
denvative financial instruments, are ntially recogmsed at far value on the date a derivative
contract 1s entered into and are subsequently remeasured at therr farr value. The method of
recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on whether the cdenvative 1s designated as a
hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged

All dernvatives are camed as assets when fair value 1s positive and as liabilibes when farr value 1s
negative The full far value of hedging derivatives is classified as a non-current asset or liabiity if
the remaining maturity of the hedged item is more than twelve months, and as a cumrent asset or
hability if the remaiming matunty of the hedged item is less than twelve months Trading denvatives
are classified as a current asset or hability
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Summary of significant accounting polictes - continued
1.24 Derivative financial instruments and hedging - continued

On the date a denvative contract 1s entered into, the Group designates certain dervatives as a
hedge of a future cash flow attnbutable to a recognised asset or liabikty or a forecast transaction
{cash flow hedge) Hedge accountng is used for derivatives designated in thus way provided
certan cntena are met Under the requirements of IAS 39, the critena for a denvative instrument to
be accounted for as a cash flow hedge include

. formal documentation of the hedging instrument, hedging item, hedging objective, strategy
and relationship 1s prepared before hedge accountng 1s applied,

. the hedge 1s documented showing that it 13 expected to be highly effective n offsetting the
nsk in the hedged item throughout the reporting penod, and

. the hedge 1s effective on an ongoing basis

Accordingly, the Group documents at the inception of the transaction, the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objechve and sirategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions This process includes hnking all denvatives designated as
hedges %o specific assets and habities or to specific forecast transactons The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge n¢eption and on an ongoing basis, of whether the
denvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective In offsetting changes in cash
flows of hedged items

Changes In the fair value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges and
that prove to be highly effective in relation to the hedged nsk, are recogmised in the hedaing
reserve In equity In respect of option contracts, designated as hedging instruments, the Group
splits fair value into the intnnsic value and time value components Changes In the intnnsic value of
options are designated as the hedging instrument, while the remaining component of the option (its
time value) 1s excluded from the hedging relationship Accordingly, changes in the tme value would
be accounted for in the iIncome statement

Where the forecast transaction results in the recognitton of a non-financial asset or of a non-
financial iability, the gains and losses previously defarred in equity are transferred from equity and
included 1n the inthial measurement of the cost of the asset or hability Otherwise amounts deferred
in equity are transferred to the income statement and classified as revenue or expense (n the
penods dunng which the hedged forecast transaction affects the Income statement

Certain denvative transactons, while providing effective aconomic hedges under the Group's nsk
management policies, do not qualfy for hedge accounting under the specific rules in IAS 39 and
are therefore treated as denvatives held for trading Changes in the farr value of any denvative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting under IAS 39 are recognised immediately in
profit or loss

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for
hedge accounting under IAS 38, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at that time remains
in equity and 15 recogrused in profit or loss when the hedged forecast transaction affects profit or
loss However, if a forecast transachon 1s no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain ar loss
that was reported in equity is immedately transferred to the income statememt

The farr values of denvative instruments held for trading and hedging purposes are disclosed in
Note 11 to the financial statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies - continued
1.25 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) hald for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale and stated at the
lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell if therr carrying amount 1s to be recovered
principally through a sale transacton rather than through a continuing use, and a sale Is considered
highly probable These assets may be a component of the entity, a disposal group or an individual
non-current asset

A discontinued operation is a component of an entity that etther has been disposed of, or that 1s
classified as held for sale, and

(a) represents a separate majar hine of business or geographical area of operations,

(b) s part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or

(c) s asubsidiary acqured exclusively with a view to resale

Financial risk management
2.1 Financial risk factors

As an arhne operating internationally, the Group's actvites potentially expose il to a vanety of
financial nsks' market nsk {including currency risk, fair value interest rate nsk, cash flow mnterest
rate nsk and price risk), credit risk and hguidity nsk  The Group's overall risk management, covering
nsk exposures for all Group undertakings, focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to mimmise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance The Company's
board of directors prowides principles for overall Group nsk management, as well as policies
covenng risks refarred to above and specific areas such as investment of excess liquidty

In order to manage exposures to risks ansing from fluctuations in currency exchange rates and
fluctuations in pnces on the crude ol and fue! products markets, the Group makes use of dervative
financial instruments These instruments mainly comprise foreign currency forward contracts and
options together with fuel hedging instruments

N

{(a) Mari(et nsk
0] Foreign exchange risk

The general hedging policy guidelines regarding currency and fuel price nsks are set by the Board
and the Company’s finance department is responsible for implementation of these hedging policies
The respective denvative transactions are concluded only with first rate counterparties

Foreign exchange nsk anses from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and
liabilites which are denominated in a currency that 1s not the respective entity’s functional currency
The Group i1s exposed to foreign exchange arising from vanous currency exposures, primarily with
respect to the US dollar and UK sterling With respect to the US dollar, the Group 1s 1n a net payer
positicn from its operating business particularly in view of a significant portion of purchases
denominated in this currency, including fuel, operating leases, maintenance and other related
costs In relation to other currencies the Group 1s In a net surplus position which 1s attnbutable to a
portion of Group’s revenue which 1s denominated in these currenctes UK sterling 1s considered to
be the main nsk exposure In this respect A subsidiary domiciled overseas (see Note 41 1) has a
functional currency which 1s different from the eurc This subsidiary 15 also subject to currency nsk
in respect of purchases and mntra-Group financing denominated in euro, but these exposures are
not deemed matenal in the context of the Group figures
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
a) Market nsk - continued

{0 Foregn exchange risk - continued

The expected future cash flows in mdividual major currencies usually over the coming 12 months
(2011 12 months) are budgeted and analysed, and the Group hedges the respective net currency
exposure In major currencies, within certain pre-established parameters, by entering into forward
foreign exchange contracts These contracts represent commitments to purchase foreign currency
amounts covering the net exposure at a pre-established exchange rate The Company also utiises
foreign currency options when deemed necessary In accordance with the requirements of IAS 39,
the Group designates forecast transactons amounting to the net exposure in individual currencies
as hedged items These forecast transactions, qualifying as highly probable, would typically include
the Group’s purchases of fuel, lease expenditure and other aircraft related operating costs These
expenses are routinely denominated in US dollar, which cumrency accounts for a relatively minor
portion of the Group's revenues Foracast transactions designated as hedged items could also
include revenues denominated in UK sterling

As at 31 March 2012, the Group forecasts net receipts denomimated in UK stering amounting to
€22 8 million (2011 €14 6 million) for the twelve months immediately after the end of the reporting
period The Group also forecasts nel payments denominated in US dollar amounting to €726
mithon (2011 €59 5 mullion) for the twelve months immediately after the end of the reporting penod
These exposures were partially hedged as at the end of the reporting penod, in accordance with
the policy parameters referred to previously, through the use of derivative contracts having a
notional amount of €47 3 million (2011 €31 2 milhion) covenng US dollar exposures, and €8 2
million {2011 €4 8 mullion) covenng GBP exposures

The Group's main on balance sheet nsk exposures reflecting the net camying amount of
receivables and payables denominated in foreign currencies at the end of the reporting penods
were as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
€000 €000 €000 €000
Net UK sterling hability position {5,886) {7.711) (5,8686) (7.711)
Net US dollar liability position {37,280) (34,038) (37,383)  (34,331)
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Financial risk management - continued

21 Financial risk factors - continued

{a) Market nsk - continued

{1 Foreign exchange risk - continued

if as at the end of the reporting period the eure had strengthened/weakened by 10% against the UK

sterling and US dollar with all other variables held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would change
as follows

Group Company
(+) 10% {-) 10% {(+}10% {-) 10%
€000 €000 €000 €000

UK sterling

At 31 March 2012 533 (652) 533 (652)
At 31 March 2011 701 (857) 701 (857)
US dollar

At 31 March 2012 3,387 {4,140) 3,398 (4,154)
At 31 March 2011 3,095 (3,782) 3,121 (3,815)

I the Euro had strengthened/iweakened by 10% aganst the US dollar and UK Sterling with all other
vanables held constant, equity (prior to tax effects) as at the end of the reporting penod would
change as follows

Group and Company

(+) 10% (-) 10%

€000 €000

At 31 March 2012 5,023 (6.478)
At 31 March 2011 3,184 {3.891)

The amounts disclosed in the table above are attnbutable to changes in the farr values of hedging
denvative financial instruments as a result of reasonable possible shifts in exchange rates at the
end of the reporting penod.
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Financial risk management - continued

2.1 Financlal risk factors - continued

{a) Market nsk - continued

(1)  Cash flow and far value mnterest rate risk

The Group's interest rate nsk principally anses from bank borrowings issued at vanable rates
(Note 24) and advances to related parties subject to floating interest rates which expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate nsk The Group's borrowings mainly consist of facilities subject to vanable
interest rates which are pnncipally based on reference rates. Management monitors the impact of
changes 1n market interest rates on amounts reported In the income statement in respect of these
instruments. Based on this analysis, management considers the potential impact on profit or loss of
a defined interest rate shift that 1s reasonably possible at the end of the reporting pernod to be
immatenal and accordingly the level of interest rate nsk 1s contained The Group’s operating cash
flows are substantially iIndependent of changes in market interest rates

Whenever deemed necessary, the Group uses interest rate swaps, as cash flow hedges of future
vanable interest payments, which have the economic effect of converting long-term borrowings
from floating rate instruments to fixed rate loans Under the interest rate swaps, the Group agrees
with the denvative counterparties to exchange at specified intervals (mainily quarterly or on a six
monthly basis}), the difference between fixed contract rates and vanable rate interest amounts
calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal amounts

{(mj  Price nsk

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, fuel expenses amounted to €66 million (2011 €52
milion) as disclosed in Note 28 2 to the financial statements and accounted for approximately 27%
(2011 20%) of the total operating expenses of the Group fram continuing operations Fluctuations
in crude oll, jet fuel and other fuel product prces may have a significant effect on the Group's
results Different hedging instruments with regard to the crude oil and fuel products markets are
used to limit the fuel price risk The Group's policy during the current and preceding years is aimed
at hedging, in normal crcumstances, a minimum of 40% of the expected fue! expenditure of the
ensuing twelve months As at 31 March 2012, the notional amounts of the hedging denvatives
outstanding amounted to approximately €28 2 million (2011 €4 million) in view of the prevailing
market and trading conditions (refer to Note 11)

Commodity options used by the Group are contractual arrangements under which the wnter (seller)
grants the purchaser the nght, but not the obligation, either to notionally buy (a call option) or sell (a
put option) the notonal quantity of 3 commodrty at a predetermined pnce (stnke pnce) dunng a set
penod of tme Such contracts are typically settled on a net basis by comparing the stnke price to
the reference market pnce applicable dunng the set pencd

Commodity swap agreements are commitments to exchange one set of cash flows based on fixed
contracted fuel prices (determined by reference to the contract's notional amount) for another set of
cash flows determined by variable prices Alternatively, two sets of cash flows determined by
vanable pnices may be exchanged particularly when the two sets of vanable pnces are determined
by reference to different commodity reference pnces
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Financlal risk management - continued

2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

(a}) Market risk - continued

()  Price risk - continued

If as at 31 March 2012 the pnce of fuel products had strengthened/weakened by 10% with all other
variables held constant, equity {pnor to tax effects) as at the end of the repoting penod would

change as follows

Group and Company

(+)10% (-) 10%

€000 €000

At 31 March 2012 (4,232) 4,232
At 31 March 2011 (67) 60

(b) Credit risk

Credit nisk principally anses from cash and cash equivalents and credit exposures to customers,
including outstanding debtors and committed transactions The Group's exposures to credit nsk as
at the end of the reporting penods are analysed as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
Continuing operations: €000 €000 €000 €000
Loans and receivables category
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 20,326 23,531 17,574 22915
Term placements with banks (Note 16) 2,578 5,856 - -
Trade and related receivables 24,369 22,704 24,369 .22,500
Amounts owed by subsidianes - - 2,320 14
Amounts due from ultimate shareholder 46,200 - 485,200 -
Other receivables 8,876 9,589 8,784 8,869
Loans to subsidianes and associates
(Notes 8 and 9) - 213 - 213
102,349 61,893 99,247 54,511
Financtal iInstruments held for hedging
Denvative financial instruments (Note 11) 5,072 650 5,072 650
107,421 62,543 104,319 55,161
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{b} Credit nsk - continued

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Discontinued operations: €000 €000 €000 €000
Loans and receivables category
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 18) 1,663 1,362 - -
Trade and other receivables (Note 18) 1,862 1,188 - -
Loans to substdianes and associates
(Note 8, 9 and 18) 213 - 213 4,323
3,738 2,550 213 4,323

The maximum exposure to credit nsk at the end of the reporting date in respect of the financial
assets mentioned above is equivalent to their carrying amount as disclosed in the respective notes
to the financial statements The Group has no significant past due or impaired financial assets with
the exception of the amounts disclosed in respect of trade and other recevables together with
loans to subsidiaries and associates The Group does not have any renegotiated financial assets
which would otherwise be past due or impaired and it only holds collateral in respect of exposures
relating to trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents and term placements with banks

Group undertakings principally bank with local and foreign financial institutions which have high
quality credit standing or rating The Group's main foreign bank counterparties as at the end of the
reporting penods have a satisfactory external credit rating, as determined by major rating agencies
such as Fitch Exposures to foreign banking mnstitutions as at 31 March 2012 amounted to
approximately €6 5 milion (2011° €4 4 milion) Term placements with banks with contractual terms
of more than three months mature within a penod of thirty-four (2011 thirty-four) months from the
end of the reporting perod and are held principally with local bank counterparties, Hence credit nsk
in this respect 1s quite iimited
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{(b)  Credt nsk - continued
Trade and other receivables

The sale of passage and freight documents 1s largely processed through agencies that are usually
Iinked to country specific cleanng systems for the settiement of passage and freight sales Other
individual agents are checked for creditworthiness and where necessary special collateral 1s
provided for in the respective service contract The respective credit nsk concerning sales agents 1s
relatively low because of the broad distnbution

Recevables and habilites between arlings, unless otherwise stpulated n the respective
agreements, are seiftled on a bilateral basis or through a clearing house of the International Air
Transport Association (IATA) All recewvables and habilties are set-off against one another at
monthly intervals, which leads 1o a considerable reduction in the default nsk fn mdwdual cases,
special collateral 1s provided for in the respective service contract

For all other service relationships, additional coliateral 1s requested depending on the type and
extent of the services rendered Credit refarances or histoncal data from a previous relatanship, 1n
particular refernng to payment behaviour, are utilised to avoid non-performance

The Group manages credit Iimits and exposures actively in a practicable manner such that past
due amounts recervable from customers are within controited parameters The credit quality of the
Group’s trade and other recewvables, which are not imparred or past due financial assets, reflects
the nature of these assets which are principally debts in respect of transactions with customers for
whom there 15 no recent history of default Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these customers As atl 31 March 2012, the Group holds collateral in the form of
bank guarantees for the amount of €2,776,704 (2011 €2,522,081) as secunty in respect of trade
receivables At 31 March 2012 and 2011, no trade or other receivables that would otherwise be
past due or mpaired have been renegotiated

The Group’s and Company's debtors include significant amounts due from subsidianes and
associates forming part of the Air Malta Group and related parties that are owned or controlled by the
Government of Malta The Group'’s credit control function monitors intra-Group credit and related
party exposures at indindual entty level on a regular basis and ensures timely performance of
these assets in the context of overall Group iquidity management The Group assesses the credit
quality of these related partes taking into account financial pesition, performance and other factors
and management does not expect any losses from non-performance or default, other than losses
reflected within provisions for impairment
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2, Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued

{b)  Credst nisk - continued

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's and Company's trade receivables amounting to €5,389,000
(2011 €4,855,000) and €4,067,000 (2011' €3,536,000) respectvely were impaired and the amount
of the provisions in this respect are equivalent to these amounts. The individually impaired
receivables mainly relate to a number of independent customers which are 1n unexpectedly difficult
economic situations and which are accordingly not meeting repayment obligatons The Group
does not hold any significant collateral as secunty in respect of the impaired assets

The movement in provisions for impairment of trade receivables i1s analysed as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Continuing operations* €000 €000 €000 €000
At beginning of year 3,536 3,026 3,536 3,028
Increase n provisions 560 718 560 718
Reversals of provisions which are no

longer required (29) {135) {29) (135)
Other movements - (73) - (73)
At end of year 4,067 3,536 4,067 3,536
Discontinued operations*
At beginning of year 1,319 1,405 - -
Increase in provisions a0 184 - -
Reversals of provisions which are no

longer required (17) (265) - -
Other movements . (5) -
At end of year 1,332 1,319 - -
Total 5,309 4,855 - -

Reversais of provisions for impairment anse in those situatons where customers recover from
unfavourable circumstances and accordingly start meeting repayment obligations. The movements
in these provisions are disclosed in Note 28 2 and are included in ‘Administrative expenses’ in the

Group's incoms statement
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Financlal risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
{b) Credit nsk - continued

As al 31 March 2012, trade receivables and amounts owed by related parbes amounting to
€1,931,000 and €139,000 (2011 €1,444,000 and €258,000) respectively were past due but not
impatred These relate to a number of customers for whom there 1s no recent history of default and
in respect of which the Group has obtained no significant collateral Categorisation of receivables
as past due is determined by the Group on the basis of the nature of the credit terms in place and
credit arrangements actually utiised in managing exposures with customers

The aging analysis of the past due trade recevables is as follows

2012 2011
€000 €000
Up to 60 days 428 506
60 to 120 days 872 228
Over 120 days 831 710
1,931 1,444

The ageing analysis of the current year amounts owed by related parties I1s such that these
amounts have been past due mainly for more than six months

As at 31 March 2012, the Company also had amounts receivable from associates amounting to
€173,000 (2011, €198,000) which were past due but not imparred Such amounts were mawnly past
due for less than one year

As at 31 March 2012, the Company had amounts receivable from subsidianes amounting to
€1,715,000 (2011 €2,609,000) which were imparred Such amounts were mainly past due The
impaired balances as at 31 March 2011 have been wntten off during the current financial year At
31 March 2012, the Company and Group also had amounts receivable from related parlies
amounting to €817,580 (2011 €617,887) which were impaired. These amounts were past due

The Group's cther recewvables prnincipally comprise secunty deposits effected and payments on
account Credit nsk n this respect 1s managed accordingly, taking cognisance of the Group's
operational arrangements with such contracting parties

Loans to subsidiaries and associates

The Group's and Company's loans referred to in the table on page 44 consist of advances to
subsidianes and associates farming part of the Arr Malta Group The Group's credit contrel functon
monitors intra-Group credit exposures and ensures tmely performance in the context of overali
Group hquidity management Management does not expect any losses from non-performance or
default, except as disclosed below. Loans to subsidianes and associates which are impaired are
reflected in Notes 8 and 9 and the provisions for imparment (n this respect are equivalent to the
impaired assets The impaired assets consist of loans to entiies which are In adverse trading and
operational circumstances
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(b)  Credit risk - continued

The movements in the provisions for impatrment of loans to subsidianes are analysed as follows

Company
2012 2011
€000 €000
Provisions on loans to subsidiaries
At beginming of year 6,429 552
Increase 1n provisions 4,485 5,877
Reversals of prowvisions which are no
longer required in view of waiver of loans {312) -
At end of year 10,602 6,429

Denivative financial instruments

Credit nsk ansing from denvative financial instruments lies wn the insolvency of the contracting party
and as a consegquence, in the amount of the sum, on balance, of positive market values vis-a-wvis
the respective derivative counterpartes Foreign exchange denvative transactions are concluded
with first rate local banking insttutions only, while fuel derivative contracts are entered into with
foreign financial institutions which have high quality credit standing or rating The Group's main
foreign denvative counterparties as at the end of the reporting periods have a satisfactory external
credit rating, as determined by major rating agencies such as Fitch

{c) Liquidity nsk

The Group is exposed to hquidity nsk in relation to meeting future obligations associated with its
financial iabihties, which comprise prncipally borrowings (Note 24) and payables Prudent kquidity
risk management includes mamtainng sufficient cash and commutted credit ines to ensure the
availlability of an adequate amount of funding to meet the Group’s oblgations Management
monitors hquidity nsk by reviewing expected Group cash flows, and ensures that iquid resources
and facilities that are expected to be required over the coming year are in place

Based on the results of the Group’s budgeting process, management usually prepares a liquidity
plan covernng the subsequent twelve month period that reflects the anticipated hquidity position
aver the period and ensures that pre-established net hiquidity levels are met at all tmes during the
penod under review This process Is performed and monitored by a central treasury function and
the plan is reviewed on an ongoing basis
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Financial risk management - continued
2.1 Financlal risk factors - continued
{c) Liquidity nsk - continued

The overall lquidity requirements of the Group invalve maintaining avallable net liquidity equivalent
to a number of weeks' cash outflows from operations depending on seasonalty and expected
volatiity The nsk is actively managed by taking cognisance of the matching of operational cash
inflows and cutflows including those arising from expected maturites of financial instruments, the
Group's committed bank borrowng facilities and sharsholder financing that it can access In view of
the Group's financial position and its operating resulls, the aifine’s liguidity management process
has signficantly influenced the Company's Restructurmg Plan which has been approved by the
European Commussion subsequent to 31 March 2012 as referred to in Note 111 As autined
previously In the said note, a number of financing arrangements have been projected in the
Restructunng Plan and the key steps in implementing the financing process required include

. The Rescue Aid Loan from the principal shareholder, amounting to €52 million, that was due
for repayment tn November 2011 has been extended for a further pencd to November 2012
or until one month from the date on which the Restructuring Plan has been finally determined
and approved by the Commussion, whichever 1s the earlier

. A Promise of Sale Agreement to dispose of the principal property, constituting the remaining
mamn asset owned by the Company, for an amount of €66 2 milion has been entered into
with Government in December 2011 with a deposit of €20 miion which has been paid by
Government in January 2012

. The Company has successfully negotiated fresh bank loans amounting to €30 midlion on the
back of the Promise of Sale Agreement referred to above, which loans will be repaid from

the sale proceeds Further faciities of €20 mithon will be required durning the later part of the
5 year plan

. The disposal process of the Company’s subsidianies and other strategic investments, which
have been earmarked for sale, has progressed dunng the current financial year

. Government will make a fresh commercial loan of €52 mullion to the Company These funds
will be used by the Company to pay back the Rescue Aid Loan in hne with Rescue and
Restructunng Guidelines The commercial loan will be converted to equity in the later part of
the 5 year plan

. The Company will allocate €78 million of fresh equity to Government The capital will be
called up In tranches in due course in accordance with the program estabhshed i the
Restructunng Plan.
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Financial risk managemant - continued
2.1 Financial risk factors - continued
(c) Liguidity nsk - continued

The funding requirements and the arrangements necessary to put the funding at the disposal of the
Company have been approved by the principal shareholder as outlined above The Group expects
to meet the contractual cash outflows ansing from financial liabibties disclosed below, extending
beyond the subsequent twelve month penod, through operating cash flows and in parbcular
financing cash inflows as referred to previously

The tables below present the cash flows payable by the Group and the Company under non-
derivative financial liabilites by remaining contractual maturittes at the end of the reporting penod
The amounts disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows Balances due
within twelve months equal therr carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is not significant

Group
Within 2 3-6 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over$
At 31 March 2012 months Months months years years yoars Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Continuing operations
Bank borrowings 1,158 2314 1,259 507 10,318 - 15,554
Loan from sharehoclder - - 57,909 - - - 57,909
Trade and other payables 43,344 - - . - - 43,344
44 500 2,314 59,168 507 10,318 - 116,807
Discontinued operations
Bank borrowings 4570 - - - - - 3,670
Trade and other payables 5288 - - - - - 5,288
8,858 - - - - - 8,858
Total 53,358 2,314 59,168 507 10,318 - 125,685

At 31 March 2011

Continuing operations
Bank borrowings 1,488 2,751 3608 4,132 - - 11,987
Loan from shareho!der - 43,153 - - - 43,153

Trade and other payables 45,019 - - - - 45,019
46,515 2,751 46,761 4132 - - 100,159

Discontinued operations
Bank borrowings 2,663 - - - - - 2,663
Trade and other payables 5177 - - - - - 5177
7,840 - - - - - 7.840
Total 54,355 2,751 468,761 4,132 - - 107,899

Subsequent to 31 March 2011, the tarm of the shareholder's loan was extended to 15 November
2012 or untl one month from the date on which the Restructuring Plan has been finally determined
and approved by the Commission, whichever 15 the earler On 27 June 2012, the European
Commussion has communicated its decision confirming approval of Restructurnng Ad for Air Malta
p | ¢, the amounts reflected in the table above have not been madified in this respect
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Financlal risk management - continued
21 Financial risk factors - continued

(c) Liquidity nsk - continued

Company
Within 3 3-8 6-12 1-2 2-5 Over5
months months months years ybars yoars Total
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
At 31 March 2012
Bank borrowings 1,156 2,314 1,259 507 10,318 - 15,654
Loan from shareholder - - 57,909 - - - 57,809
Trade and other payables 48,824 - - - - - 48,824
49,980 2,314 59,168 507 10,318 - 122,287
At 31 March 2011
Bank borrowings 1,496 2,751 3,608 4,132 - - 11,987
Loan from shareholder - - 43,153 - - - 43,153
Trade and other payables 48,396 - - - - - 48,396
49,892 2,751 46,761 4,132 - - 103,536

The Group's denvatives that will be setfled on a gress basis consist pnncipally of forward foreign
exchange contracts (Note 11) The table below analyses the Group's dervative financial liabilities
that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity Groupings based on the remaining penod
at 3% March 2012 to the contractual matunty date The amounts disclosed In the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows

Group and Company
Within 3 3-8 6-12
monthe months months Total
€000 €000 €000 €000

At 31 March 2012
Foreign exchange -

dernvatives

- Qutflows {1,741) (1,745) (4,957) (8,443)

- Inflows 1,696 1,697 4838 8,21
(45) (48) (M9 (212)

Group and Company

Within 3 3-6 6-12
months months months Total

€000 €000 €000 €000
At 31 March 2011

Foreign exchange

denvatives
- Qutflows (9.814) (9,814) (3.271) (22,900)
- Inflows 0,396 9,396 3,132 21,923

(418) (418) (139) 977}
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Financlal risk management - continued
2.1 Financlal risk factors - continued
(c)  Liquidity nsk - continued

The Group’s denvative financial habilities as at 31 March 2012, which will be settled on a net basis
are not deemed matenal for the purpose of disclosing the contractual undiscounted cash flows

22 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group usually monitors capital on the basis of the
geanng ratio This ratio 1s calculated as net debt divided by total capital Net debt 1s calculated as
total borrowings (as shown in the consolidated statement of financial position} less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital Is calculated as equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position plus net debt In view of the fact that the Group has negative equity or net liability position
as at 31 March 2012, the Group's geaning ratio is not currently deemed to be a relevant benchmark
for capital management The current and prior year adverse financial results have impacted the
financial position of the Group in particular the equity levels

As outlined in Note 1 1 1, subsequent to 31 March 2012 the European Commission has approved
the Company’s Restructuring Plan  This Restructunng Plan sets out the turnaround strategy for Air
Malta p I ¢ for the five-year perod FY2012 to FY2016 This strategy 1s set out over five years after
a careful assessment by management of the shortest time required to restore the long-term viability
and capital position of the Company, keeping in mind possible future operating conditions included
within the Restructuring Plan are long-term finaneing arrangements that will address the Capital
posttion of the Company dunng the five year penod. In particulas, apart from the improvement in
trading performance and operating cash flows together with management of borrowings as
reflected under the Liquidity nsk management section above, the equity base of the Company will
be strengthened though the following

. Government will make a fresh commercial loan of €52 million to the Campany These funds
will be used by the Company to pay back the Rescue Aid Loan in line with Rescue and
Restructunng Guidelines The commercial loan will be converted to equity in the later part of
the 5 year plan

. The Company will allocate €78 milion of fresh equity to Government. The capital will be
called up n tranches in due course in accordance with the program esiablished in the
Restructuring Plan
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Financial risk management - continued
2,3 Fair values of financial instruments

At 31 March 2012 and 2011 the carrying amounts of cash at bank, recevables, payables, accrued
expenses and short-term borrowings reflected in the financial statements are reasonable estimates
of fair value in view of the nature of these instruments or the relatively short period of time between
the ongination of the instruments and ther expected realisation.

The farr value of non-current financial instruments for disclosure purposes are estmated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that 1s available to
the Group for similar financial instruments The carrying amount of the Group's nen-current
advances to related parties fairly approximates the estimated far value of these assets based on
discounted cash flows The far value of the Group's non-current floating interest rate bank

borrowings as at the end of the reporting penods I1s not significantly different from the carrying
amounts

Information on the fair value of the Group’s term placements with banks 1s disclosed in Note 16
The fair vatue of dervative financial instruments 1s determined in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy disclosed in Note 124 Far values are determined using forward exchange
market rates at the end of the reporting penod for forward foreign exchange contracts and using
dealer quotes from counterparties or valuation techniques, including discounted cash flow models,
for other derivative contracts (see Notes 11 and 22). The valuation techniques used are supported
by observable market prices or rates since ther vanables include only data from observable
markets

With effect from the financial year which commenced on 1 April 2010, the Group adopted the
amendment to IFRS 7 for financtal instruments that are measured in the statement of financial
position at fair value This amendment requires disclosure of farr value measurements by level of
the following fair value measurement hierarchy

- Quoted pnices (unadjusted) i active markets for identical assets (level 1),

- Inputs other than quoted pnices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset
either directly t e as prices, or Indirectly 1.e. derived from pnces (level 2)

- Inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market data 1 e unobservable inputs
(level 3).

At 31 March 2012, all the Group's denvative financial instruments disclosed in Note 11 are
categonsed as level 2 instuments, since these contracts are far valued through valuation
technigues utilising data solely from observable markets. The farr value of all the Group's available-
for-sale assets 1s approximated by the camying amount of these assets and accordingly no fair
value changes have been reflected The fair values utilised in this respect have been estmated on
the basis of techniques utilising observable inputs categonsed as ievel 2 inputs

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historcal experience and other
factors Including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the
circumstances
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements - continued

In the opinion of the directors, the accounting estimates and judgements made in the course of
preparing these financial statements are not difficult, subjective or complex to a degree which
would warrant their descniption as cntical in terms of the requirements of IAS 1

As referred to In Notes 5 and 6 to the financial statements, the Group’s land and buildings category
of property, plant and equipment and nvestment property are far valued on the basis of
professional adwice, which considers currert market pnces n an active market for the properties

Segment reporting

Subsequent to the adoption of the requirements of IFRS 8, ‘Operating segments’, the Group's
management reviewed the disclosures required m this respect and determined that the Group
effectively has one operating segment taking cognisance of the information utilised within the
Group for the purposes of assessing performance

Property, plant and equipment

Group
Land Aircraft
and and fight Other
buildings equipment assets Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
At 1 April 2010
Cost or valuation 69,141 25,677 22,754 117,572
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (258) {20,366) {19,706) {40,330)
Net book amount 68,883 5311 3,048 77,242
Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening net boock amount 68,883 5,311 3,048 77,242
Adjustment arising on revaluation (Note 21) (13,482) - - {13,482)
Additions 107 6,168 646 6,921
Reclassification to investment property
(Note 8) (468) - - (488)
Transfer to assets classified as heid
for sale (Note 18) (504} - (193) (697)
Disposals - {12,612) (895)  (13,507)
Depreciation charge (1,202) (629) (888) (2,719)
Depreciation released on disposals - 2,439 791 3,230
Closing net book amount 53,334 677 2,500 56,520
At 31 March 2011
Cost or valuation 53,34 19,233 22,312 94 879
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses - (18,558) (19,803) {38,359)
Net book amount 53,334 a77 2,509 56,520
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Property, plant and equipment - continued

Land Aircraft
and and flight Other
buildings  equipment assets Total
€000 €000 €000 €000
Year anded 31 March 2012
Opening net book amount 53,334 677 2,509 56,520
Addttions - 195 7 202
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale
{Note 18) - - (9) {9)
Disposals (50,723) - {(41) (50,764)
Depreciation charge (47) {300) {848)  (1,195)
Depreciation released on disposals - - 39 39
Other movements {(11) - - {11)
Closing net book amount 2,553 572 1,657 4,782
At 31 March 2012
Cost or valuation 2,600 19,428 22,269 44,297
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (47) (18,856) {20,612) (39,515)
Net book amount 2,553 572 1,857 4,782

The Group’s land and bulldings were revalued on 31 March 2010 by an independent professionally
qualfied valuer Valuations were made on the basis of open market value at that date taking
cogrisance of the specific location of the properties, the size of the sites and the avalability of
simular properties in the area At 31 March 2010, the baok value of the properties had been
adjusted to the land and building’s carrying amount and the resultant surpius, net of applicable
deferred taxation, had been credited to the revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity (Note 21)

On 7 December 2011, the Company entered into an irrevocable Promise of Sale Agreement with
the Government of Maita in respect of the principal elements of its land and buildings category The
carrying amounts of the Group's land and bulldings as at 31 March 2011 have been adjusted to
take into account the sale prices contracted within the Promise of Sale Agreement, which prices
are considered by the directors to reflact the fair values of tand and buildings as at 31 March 2011
A downward adjustment to the carrying amount of property, glant and equipment of €13 5 million
was required in this respect as at 31 March 2011, with related adjusiments to the revaluation
reserve and deferred taxation (Notes 21 and 25)

Dunng the current financial year, the Company has derecognised the property elements which are
the subject of the irrevocable Promise of Sale Agreement from its statemaent of financial position in
view of the terms of this agreement which have in substance shifted the nsks and rewards inherent
in the assets to the Government Accordingly, receivables from Government attnbutable to this
transaction, amounting to €48,200,000, have been recogmsed in the Company's statement of
financial position (Nate 12)
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Property, plant and equipment - continued

The reclassifications to investment property dunng the preceding financial year relate to transfer
upon change in use evidenced by end of owner-occupation or commencement of operating lease
arrangements in this respect

In view of the Group's Intentions In prior year, to dispose of its tour operator business and in the
current year to dispose of its insurance broker business, property, plant and equipment attnbutable
to this operation, have been transferred to assets classified as held for sale

Company
Land Asrcraft
and and flight Other
bulldings  equipment assets Tolal
€000 €000 €000 €000
At 1 April 2010
Cost or valuation 67,972 25463 21,557 114,992
Accumulated depreciation
and impaiment losses (113) (20,152) (18,711) (38,978)
Net book amount 67,859 5311 2,846 76,016
Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening net book amount 87,859 5,311 2,846 76,016
Adjustment anising on revaluation (Note 21) (13,482) - - {13,482)
Additions 107 6.168 605 6,880
Reclassification to investment property (Note 6) (468) - - (468)
Disposals - (12,612) (855) (13,467)
Depreciation charge (1.193) (629) (887) (2,708)
Depreciation released on disposals - 2,439 791 3,230
Closing net book amount 52,823 877 2,500 56,000
At 31 March 2011
Cost or valuation 52,823 19,019 21,307 93,149
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses - (18,342) (18,807) (37,149)
Net book amount 52,823 677 2,500 58,000
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Property, plant and equipment - continued

Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening net book amount
Addiians

Disposals

Depreciation charge

Depreciation released on disposals

Closing net book amount

At 31 March 2012

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciaton
and impairment losses

Net book amount

Land Auwrcraft
and and fight Other

buldings  equipment assets Total

€000 €000 €000 €000

52,823 677 2,500 58,000

- 195 7 202
(50,223) - (41) (50,264)
(47) (300) (848)  (1,195)

- - 39 39

2,553 572 1,657 4,782

2,600 19,214 21,273 43,087
(47) (18,642) {(19.616) (38,305)

2,553 572 1,857 4,782

If the land and builldings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
2,145 54,378 2,145 63,209
{272) (14,145) (272) (13,.991)
1,873 40,233 1,873 39,218
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Investment property

At 1 April 2010
Cost
Fair value gains

Carrying amount

Year ended 31 March 2011

Opening carrying amount

Reclassification from propenty, plant and equipment (Note 5)
Losses from changes in fair value

Other movements

Closing carrying amount

At 31 March 2011
Cost
Fair value gains

Carrying amount

Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening carrying amount
Disposals

Qther movements

Closing carrying amount

At 31 March 2012
Cost and carrying amount

Group Company
€000 €000
11,5456 12,054
8,238 8,236
19,781 20,2080
19,781 20,290
468 488
(4.426) (4,426)
(348) (355)
15477 15,977
12,030 12,530
3,447 3,447
15,477 15,977
15,477 16,977
(15,477) {15,977)
47 a7
47 47
a7 47

The Group's Investment properties are carmed at fair value, estimated by an independent
professionally quaiified valuer Valuations are made on the basis of open market value taking
cognisance of the specific location of the properties, the size of the sites and the availabilily of

sumilar properties in the area
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Investment property - continued

As also highlighted in Note 5, on 7 December 2011, the Company entered into an irevocable
Pronmise of Sale Agreement with the Government of Malta in respect of the principal elements of its
investment property The carrying amounts of the Group's Investment property as at 31 March
2011 have been adjusted to take into account the sale pnce contracted within the Promise of Sale
Agreement, which prices are considered by the directors to reflect the fair values of the land and
buldings as at 31 March 2011. A downward adjustment to the carmying amount of investment
property of €4 4 millon was required in this respect, with related adjustments to the pre-tax results
and deferred taxation (Note 25)

Dunng the cumrent financial year, the Company has derecogrised the property elements which are
the subject of the irrevocable Promise of Sale Agreement from its statement of financial position n
view of the terms of this agreement which have in substance shifted the nsks and rewards inherent
in the assets to the Government Accordingly, recevables from Government attnbutabla to this
transaction have been recogrised in the Company’s statement of financial position (Note 12)

The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss

Group and Company
2012 2011
€000 €000
Rental income from investment property e00 600

If the investment property was stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would be as follows

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€ € € €
Cost 47 12,755 ar 13,604
Accumulated depreciation - {(1,417) . (1,511)
Net book amount 47 11,338 47 12,093

Investment property includes property leased out by the Group under operating leases with the
following carrying amounts’

At 31 March At 31 March At 1 Apnl

2012 2011 2010
€000 €000 €000
Carrying amounts - 15,460 16,065
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7.

Intangible assets

Group and Company
Emission rights and credits for own use in
tonnes €000

Year ended 31 March 2012
Emisston nghts and credits granted 211,817 2,036
Emussion nghts and credits purchased 21,795 108
Total emission rights granted and purchased 233,412 2,144
Estimated usage of emission nghts and

credits until 31 March 2012 (58,353) {536)

With effect from 1 January 2012, ar transport has been included in the EU's Emissions Trading
Scheme and an awcraft operator s obliged to provide an emissions permit for each tonne of carbon
dioxide emitted In pnnciple, all arcraft operators that perform flights which depart from or arnve at
an arport situated in the terntory of a Member State of the European Union 1s required to
participate in the EU Emissions Trading Scheme, in respect of carbon dioxide emissions

Every auline participating in the emissions trading system has a limited quantity of emission
allowances at its disposal for every calendar year starting as from 1 January 2012, as defined by
Article 3e of Directive 2003/87/EC of the European Parllament and of the Councit (2011/638/EV)
The competent authonty has computed the free allocation of allowances to Arr Malta plc
Emissions surpassing this allotment have to be coverad by the purchase of additional certificates.

Under EU ETS legislation, an aircraft aperator is required to surrender an amount of allowances
equivalent to the quantity of actua) emissions reported in the annual ermussion reports Surrendening
of allowances must take place by not later than 30 Apnl each year in respect of the reported
emissions of the previous year

As at 31 March 2012, deferred income in respect of emrssion nghts and credits granted to the
Company amounted to €1,527,000 Also, the liability of the Company as at 31 March 2012 in
relation to emissions made until that date amounted to €536,000, as reflected in the table above
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Invastments In subsidiaries

Company
Shares in Loans to
subsidiaries  subsidianes Total
€000 €000 €000

At 1 April 2010
Cost 5,867 437 6,304
Prowvisions for imparment (1,761) - (1,761)
Carrying amount 4,106 437 4,543
Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening camrying amount 4,106 437 4,543
Repayment of loans - {189} {189)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 18) {2,243) (248) (2,491}
Closing carrying amount 1,863 - 1,863
At 31 March 2011
Cost 2,207 - 2,207
Provisions for impairment (344) - {344)
Carmying amount 1,863 - 1,863
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening carrying amount 1,863 - 1.863
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 1B) (58) - (58)
Closing carrying amount 1,805 - 1,805
At 31 March 2012
Cost 2,102 - 2,102
Provisions for impairment (297) - (297)
Carmrying amount 1,805 - 1,805

The net investments transferred to assets classified as held for sale dunng the current and
preceding financial years relate to the Company's invastments attnbutable to the Group's Insurance
broking and tour operator businesses respectively, which the Group intends to dispose of
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Investments in associates

Group
Shares in Loans to
associates  associates Total
€000 €000 €000
At 1 April 2010
Cost 99 259 358
Share of undertakings’ post acquisition
profits and reserves (19} - (19)
Carrying amount 80 259 339
Yeoar ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying amount 80 259 339
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 18) (87) - (87)
Repayment of loans - (46} (46)
Share of results 658 - 658
Dividends received (225) - (225)
Closing carrying amount 426 213 639
At 31 March 2011
Cost 12 213 225
Share of undertakings’ post acquisition
profits and reserves 414 - 414
Carrying amount 426 213 639
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening carrying amount 426 213 639
Dwidends received (210) - {210)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 18) (216) (213) {429)
Closing carrying amount - . -

in the consolidated financial statements the Group's share of results of the associates, disclosed in
the tables above, 15 after tax

Durning the year ended 31 March 2012 the Company formulated ds intentions to dispose of its
mvestment 1n World Aviation Group Limited, and accordingly the investment was transferred to
assets classified as held for sale As a result, this investment 1s not accounted for under the equity
method of accounting in these consolidated financial statements

The Group's share of resulls of its principal associate, and its share of the respective assets and
Iabiities were not deemed material for disclosure purposes, taking inte account the Group's
intentions highlighted above

Dunng the preceding year, the Company disposed of its interest in Flight Catenng Company
Limited and accordingly this investment had been transferred to assets classified as held for sale
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Investments 1n associates - contnued

Company
Shares In Loans to
associates associates Total
€000 €000 €000
At 1 April 2010
Cost and Carrying amount 89 259 358
Yoar ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying amount 89 259 358
Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (Note 18) (87) - (87)
Repayment of loans - (46) (46)
Closing carmying amount 12 213 228
At 31 March 2011
Cost and carrying amount 12 213 225
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening carrying amount 12 213 225
Transfer to assets classified as
held for sale (Note 18) {12) {213) (225)

Closing carrying amaunt - - -

Loans to assoclates were unsecured and repayable on demand At 31 March 2012, these loans
were subject to a weighted average effective interest rate of 1% (2011. 1%) per annum,
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10.

Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Group

At 1 April 2010
Amortised cost
Prowtsions for impairment

Carrying amount

Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying amount

Addibions at cost

Disposals

Increase in provision for impairment
Other movements

Closing carrying ameunt

At 31 March 2011
Amortised cost
Provisions for impairment

Carrying amount

Year ended 31 March 2012

Opening carrying amount

Additions at cost )

Disposals

Increase in prowtsion for imparment

Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 18)
Other movements

Closing carrying amount
At 31 March 2012
Amortised cost

Provisions for impairment

Carrying amount

Quoted
Equity debt
instruments secunibes Total
€000 €000 €000
2,727 - 2,727
(459) - (459)
2,268 - 2,268
2,268 - 2,258
1,091 504 1,585
(1.839) - {1,839)
{581) - (581)
(8) - (8)
031 504 1,435
1,971 504 2,475
(1,040) - (1,040)
931 504 1,435
931 504 1,435
a52 - a52
(1,366) - {1,366)
(162) - {(162)
(258) - (258)
12 12 24
109 516 625
1,311 518 1,827
{1,202) - {1,202)
108 516 625
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10

Available-for-sale financial assets - continued

Analysis of total availlable-for-sale financial assets

Equity
instruments
€000

At 31 March 2012
MNon-current 107
Current 518
825

At 31 March 2011
Non-current 268
Current 1,187
1.435

The Group's non-current avallable for-sale investments comprise equity instruments In unquoted
companies The Company's directors are of the opinien that the far value of these instruments
cannot be reliably determined, in view of the absence of an active market, comparable market
transactions and aiternative reliable estimates of fair value

The weighted average effective interest rates of quoted debt secunties as at 31 March 2012 was
375% (2011 375%) The far value of the Group's quoled debt secuntes as at the end of the
reporting penod was not signficantly different from the carrying amount

Company
Equity
mstruments
€000
At 1 April 2010
Cost and carrying amount 688
Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying amount 688
Increase in provision for imparment (581)
Closing carrying amount 107
At 31 March 2011
Cost 688
Provisions for impairment (581)
Camang amount 107
Year ended 31 March 2012
Opening and closing carrying amounts 107
At 31 March 2012
Cost 688
Provisions for impairment {581)
Carrying amount 107
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10.

1.

Available-for-aale financlal assets - continued

Analysis of total available-for-sale financial assets

Equity
nstruments
€000
At 31 March 2012 and 2011

Non-current 107

Derivative financial instruments

The farr values of denvative financial instruments held at the end of the reporting penod are set out
in the following table

Group and Company
Fair values
Assets  Liabilities
€000 €000
At 31 March 2012
Derivatives held for hedging {cash flow hedges)
Forewgn exchange derivatives
- currency forwards 1,393 (172)
Fuel price hedging denvatives
- commodity swaps 3,679 (140)
Total denvative assets/(Iiabilities) — Current 5072 (312}
At 31 March 2011
Derivatives held for hedging (cash flow hedges)
Foreign exchange dernvatives
- currency forwards 235 (788)
Fuel price hedging denvatives
- combined options 140 -
- commadity swaps 275 (M
415 (M)
Total denvative assets/(liabilihes) — Current 650 (795)
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11. Derivative financlial instruments - continued

The currency forward contracts outstanding as at 31 March 2012 have the following contract terms

Fair value -
assets/
{labilities)
€000
Forward sale of EUR47 3 million against USD
(at average contracted rate of ELUR1 USD1 3857) 1,295
Forward sale of GBF7 million against EUR
(at average contracted rate of EUR1 GBPO §452) {74}
1,221

These contracts mature within a period of cne to twelve months from the end of the reporting
penod and within the same penod of ttme the forecast transactions designated as items being
hedged by these contracts are expected to affect profit or loss

The currency forward contracts cutstanding as at 31 March 2011 have the following contract terms

Farr value -
assets/
(habilties)
€000
Forward sale of EUR31 2 millon agamnst USD
(at average contracted rate of EUR1 USD1 3834) (760}
Forward sale of GBP4.0 million agammst EUR
(at average contracted rate of EUR1'GBPO 8436) 207
(553)

The terms and approximate notional amounts of the hedging commodity denvatives outstanding as
at 31 March 2012 are as follows’

Commodity swap agreements

Fair vaiue -
Contract cover Notional amount  Settlement terms assets/
(habilities)
€000
Pay-fixed ($124 3),
Two month penod to 30 June 2012 UsD1,516,000 receive-floating (27)
Pay-fixed ($109 3 -
$122 4 range),
Four menth penod to 31 October 2012 USD6,512,000 receive-fioating 201
Pay-fixed (398 9 -
Seven month perniod to 31 October $104 8 range),
2012 USD22,844,000 receiva-floating 3,050
Pay-fixed ($100 5 -
$119 4 range),
Frve month penod to 31 March 2013 USDs,727,000 receive-floating 225
3,539
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1.

12.

Derivative financial instruments - continued

These fuel hedging denvative contracts would typically have monthly exercise or settlement dates
and upon monthly net cash settlements, amounts recognised in equity in respect of these contracts
would be released to profit or loss as the forecast hedged transactions would simultaneously affect
the results of the Group

The terms and approxamate notional amounts of the hedging commodity dervatives outstanding as
at 31 March 2011 are as follows

Combined bought call options and wntten call options at higher strike

Fair value -
Contract cover Notionat amount Strike prices assets
€000
Two month penod to 31 May 2011 UsD1,086,000 $95 10/115 00 140
Commodity swap agreements
Fair value -
Contract cover Notonal amount  Settlement terms assets/
(habiltres}
€000
Pay-fixed ($94 37),
Two month penod to 31 May 2011 usD1,077,000 receive-floating 183
Pay-fixed (§108),
Three month penod to 30 June 2011 USD746,000 raceive-floating 59
Pay-fixed ($110 3),
Three month penod to 30 June 2011 UsSD783,000 recewve-floating a3
Pay-fixed ($116.98),
Five month penod to 31 August 2011 USD2,582,000 receive-floating {7)
268

Amounts owed by ultimate shareholder

These amounts receivable from the Government of Malta are in respect of praceeds due to the
Company as a result of the irevocable promise of sale agreement with the Government in relation
to the disposal of the Company's man property (Notes 5 and 6) for the amount of €66 2 million
Duning the current year, an amount of €20 nilion was received by the Company on account and
the resultant balance of €46 2 million 1s recevable by 31 December 2014
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13.

14,

15.

Other receivables

Group and Company
2012 2011
€000 €000

Non-current
Security deposits ansing from operating lease agreements 4,955 4,658
Other long-term deposits and receivables 585 280
5,540 4,938

Secunty deposits, amounting to €4,855,000 (2011 €4,658,000), will be refunded to the Company
on termination of the Company’s fleet and engine lease penods up to March 2020,

Other long-term deposits and receivables are principally receivable within five years (2011 five
years) from the end of the reporting period

Inventories
Group and Company
2012 201
€000 €000
Aurcraft engineenng spares 1,275 1,579
Other stocks 125 132
1,400 1,711
Trade receivables
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Trade recevables — gross 27,761 25,285 27,781 25,340
Less prowvisions for impairment of
trade receivables (4,087) (3.536) (4,067) {3.538)
Trade receivables — net 23,694 21,749 23,604 21,804
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186.

17.

Term placements with banks

These term placements compnse bank depasits with contractuat terms of three months or more
The placements mature within thirty-four (2011, thirty-four) months from the end of the reporting
penod Interest receivable 1s presented within ‘Finance income’ (Note 32) The weighted average
effective interest rate on these assets as at 31 March 2012 was 2 35% (2011 2 38%) The fair
value of the Group’s term bank placements as at that date was not significantly different from the
carrying amount

Group
2012 2011
€000 €000
Matunty of deposits with banks
- withun one year 2,139 4,617
- between one and two years 439 1,239
2,578 5,856

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statements of cash flows, the year-end cash and cash equivalents
compnse the following

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Attributable to continuing operations
Cash at bank and in hand 20,326 23,531 17,574 22,915
Bank overdrafts (Note 24) (156) (845) {156) (845)
20,170 22,686 17,418 22,070
Attnbutable to discontinued operations
Cash at bank and in hand 1,663 1,363 - -
Bank overdrafts (Note 18) (850) (827) - -
813 536 - -
Total cash and cash equivalents 20,983 23,222 17,418 22,070

The Group's bank balances reflected in the table above are call accounts and deposits with
contractual terms of three months or less Bank and cash balances include an amount of
€2,190,000 (2011 €934,000) thatis held in overseas bank accounts subject to currency restrictions
which lead to delays in remittance to Malta
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18.

Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued oparations

18.1 Amounts presanted in the Incomae statement

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Loss after tax of discontinued
operations (see Note 18 1 1) (2,879) (1,625} - -
Post-tax dividend income receivable
from assets classified as held for sale
during the current year — attnbutable
to discontinued operations - - 1,205 -
Post-tax gain recognised on
disposal of associate (see Note 18 1 2) - 221 - 221
Movement in provisions attributable to
subsidianes classified as held for sale
{see Note 18 1 3} - - (6,295) {10.730)
Loss for the year from discontinued
operations (2,879) {1,404) {5,000} {10,509)

18 1 1Dunng the current financial year, the Group resolved to dispose of its insurance broking

subsidiary, Osprey Insurance Brokers Company Ltd In the pnor reporting period, the Group
resolved to dispose of its tour operator business, which compnses Holiday Malta Company
Limited, based in the United Kingdom, and its subsidiary undertakings In prior years, the
Group had also publicly announced its intention to dispose of is hotel property The
subsidianes compnsing the tour operator, hotel and insurance broker are reported in these
consolidated financial slatements as discontinued operations in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS 5 ‘Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations’ The
financial information relating to the hotel, tour operator and insurance broking businesses
has been presented m the note on an aggregated basis in view of the fact that the nature of
each respective activity 1s related to the other discontnued activites Also, no separate
activity is deemed sufficiently material on an individual basis for the sake of ensuring that
disclosures within this Note suppont a true and farr view of the results and financial posttion
of the Group
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18.

Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations - continued

18.1 Amounts presented In the incoms statement - continued

An analysis of the resull of the discontinued operations i1s as fallows

Revenue
Operating costs

Operating loss
Finance income
Finance costs

Loss before tax of discontinued operations
Tax

Loss after tax of discontinued operations

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Financing cash flows

Total cash flows

Expenses by nature

Flght, accommodation and related costs
Hotel direct operating costs
Employee benefit expense (Note 29)
Depreciation of property, plant

and equipment
Marketing and advertising costs
Net movement in provisions for

impawrment of trade receivables
Impafrment of property and related charges
Other expenses

Total operating costs

2012 2011
€000 €000
10,724 15,035
(13,511)  (18,514)
(2,787)  (1.479)
107 10
(137) (207)
(2,817)  (1.6786)
(62) 51
(2,879)  (1,625)
(2,824) 606
400 576
1,003 (51)
(1,421) 1,131
2012 2011
€000 €000
7,730 8,529
. 528
1,350 2,853
24 101
476 7686
13 (250)
1,336 -
2,583 3,967
13,511 16,514
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18.

Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations - continued
18.1 Amounts presanted in the income statement - continued

1812 Dunng the pror financial year, the Group disposed of its interest in Flight Catening
Company Limited, which was an associate of the Group The carrying amount of this
investment was reclassified to assets classified as held for sale during the year of disposal
The resulting gatin on disposal 1s reflected in the table below

Group and
Company
2011

€000

Net assets disposed of/cost of shares 87
Proceeds on disposal (308)

Post-tax gain on disposal (221)

18 13 The movement in provisions attnbutable to subsidianes classified as held for sale comprise
provisions on equity investments in the companies and on loans to such entites (Note
18 2 2) together with provisions on amounts receivable from such subsidianes Dunng the
preceding financial year, a prowvision of €2,609,000 was reflected in relation to such
receivables, which provision was reversed dunng the current year upon the wrting off the
balance of €2,704,000 owed by the subsidiary Also, dunng the current financial year
further provisions amounting to €1,715,000 have been registered in relation to other
amounts receivable from this subsidiary.

18.2 Amounts presented tn the statement of financial position

18 2 1 Group
2012 2011
€000 €000
Assets classified as held for sale:
Assets attnbutable to hotel, tour cperator
and insurance broking businesses
- Property, plant and equipment 4,030 5,364
- Trade and other receivables 1,862 1,188
- Other assets 386 -
- Cash and bank balances 1,663 1,362
Investments in associate (see Note below) 429 -
8,370 7,914
Liabliities directly associated with
assets classified as held for sale:
Liabilities attnbutable to hotel,
tour operator and insurance broking
businesses
- Bank borrowings 3,570 2,663
- Trade and other payables 5,288 5177
8,858 7,840
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Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations - continued
18.2 Amounts presented in the statement of financial position - continued

During the current financial year, the company formulated iis intentions lo dispose of its investment
in World Awiation Group Limited, and accordingly the investment was transferred to assets
classified as held for sale (refer to Note @) The investments reclassified compnse the Group's
equity investment camed at €216,000 {based on equity accounting up to reclassification) and loans
with a carrying amount of €213,000

18 2 2 Company
Assots classified as held for sale:

Shares in Loansto Sharesin Loansto
subsidianes subsidianes assocates associates Total

€000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Year endod 31 March 2012
Cpening carrying amount - 4,323 - - 4323
Additions - 162 - - 162
Reclassified from Investments in
subsidianes 58 - - - 58
Reclassified from Investments in
associates - - 12 213 225
Increase in provisions for impairment - {4,485) - - (4,485)
Loan wntten off - {312} - - (312)
Reversal of provision on loan
wrnitten off - 312 - - 312
Closing carrying amount 58 - 12 213 283
Year ended 31 March 2011
Opening carrying amount - 9,872 - - 9,872
Additons - 80 - - 80
Reclassified from Invastments in
subsidiaries 2,243 248 - - 2,491
Reclassified from Investments in
associates - - 87 - a7
Increase in provisions for impaiment (2,243) (5,877) - - (8,120)
Disposais - - (87) - (87)
Closing carrying amount - 4,323 - - 4323
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Assets classified as held for sale and discontinued operations - continued
182 Amounts prasented in the statement of financial position - continued

Provisions for impairment reported within the carrying amounts abave are analysed as follows

Shares In Loans to
subsidianes subsidianes Total
€000 €000 €000

Year ended 31 March 2012
At beginning of year (6,423) (6,429) {12,852}

Net movement in provisions for mpairment (4,173) (4,173)
At end of year (8,423) {10,602) (17,025)
Shares in Loans to
subsidianes subsidiaries Total
€000 €000 €000
Yeaar ended 31 March 2011
At beginning of year (2,763) {552) (3,315)
Reclassified from Investments in subsidianes {1.417) - (1,417)
Increase in prowvisions for impairment (2,243) (5.877) (8,120)
At end of year (6,423) (6,429) (12,852)

At 31 March 2011, loans to subsidiaries amounting to €312,000 were unsecured, repayable on
demand and subject to a weighted average effective interest rate of 3 95% per annum All other
loans to subsidianes at 31 March 2011 were unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-free
Loans to associates are unsecured and repayable on demand At 31 March 2012, these loans are
subject to a weighted avarage effective interest rate of 1 5% (2011 1%) per annum

Share capital

Group and Campany

2012 2011
€000 €000
Authorised
35,000,000 (2011 35,000,000) ordinary shares of €2 329373 each 81,528 81,528
fssued and fully paid
11,115,478 {2011 11,115,478) ordinary shares of €2 329373 each 25,802 25,892

Share premium

Group and Company

2012 2011
€000 €000
At beginming and end of year 42,762 42,762
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21,

22

Revaluation reserve

The reserve represents the revaluaton adjustments ansing from the farr valuation of the land and
bulidings component to property, plant and equipment The movements in the revaluation reserve
are analysed as follows’

Group and Company

2012 201

€000 €000
At beginning of year 13,868 17,778
Adjustments to surplus ansing on revaluation - (13,482)
Deferred income tax on adjustments 1o surplus (Note 25) . 4,719
Reversal of deferred income tax arising on revaluation (Note 25) - 4,853
At end of year 13,868 13,868

The reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses upon executon of contract of sale The tax
impact relating to this component of other comprehensive income is presented in the above table
The revaluation regserve I1s non-distributable

Hedging reserve

Group and Company

The farr values of cash flow hedges are recorded in the hedging reserve, In a separate category of
equity, as shown below’

Currency  Fuel options

forwards and swaps Total
€000 €000 €000
At 1 April 2010
Gross amounts of gains 1,243 1,648 2,891
Deferred income tax {435) (577) (1,012)
808 1,071 1,879
Movements in year ended 31 March 2011
Net gains from changes i farr value 43 841 684
Deferred income tax (209) (96) {305)
(166) 545 379
Reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment (1,839) (1,923) {3,762)
Deferred income tax 644 673 1,317
(1,195) {1,250) {2,445)
At 31 March 2011
Gross amounts of (losses)/gains (553) 366 (187)
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23.

Hedging reserve - continued

Currency  Fuel options

forwards and swaps Total
€000 €000 €000
At 1 April 2011
Gross amounts of {losses)/gains (553) 366 (187)
Movements in year ended 31 March 2012
Net gains from changes in fair value 1,760 4,033 5,793
Deferred income tax (422) (1,540) {1,962}
1,338 2,493 3,831
Reclassified to profit or loss
as a reclassification adjustment 14 (859) (845)
Deferred income tax (5) 301 296
9 (558) (549)
At 31 March 2012
Gross amounts of gains 1,221 3,540 4,761
Deferred income tax {427} (1,239) (1.666)
794 2,301 3,095

The tax mpacts relating to this component of other comprehensive income are presented in the
above tables

The net fair value gains as at 31 March 2012 on open forward foreign exchange contracts which
hedge anticipated future foreign currency transactions will be reclassified from the hedging reserve
to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment when the forecast transactions occur, at vanous
dates up to one year from the end of the reporting penod

The net fair value gains as at the end of the reporting period on outstanding commeodity denvatives
will be reclassified from the hedging reserve to profit or foss as a reclassification adjustment in the
penods in which the hedged forecast transactions affect profit or loss This would occur in the
months covered by the terms of the contracts, according to the incidence of exercise or setlement
dates, for a penod of twelve months following the end of the reporting penod

Other reserve
Group

The other reserve arose on consolidation following the acquisition of non-controlling interests in
subsidianes

2012 2011
€000 €0C0
At beginning and end of year {3,4987) (3.497)
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24

Borrowings
Group and Company
2012 201
€000 €000
Current
Bank overdrafts 156 845
Bank loans 4,000 7,142
Borrowings from uitimate shareholder 52,000 41,000
56,156 48,987
Nen-current
Bank loans 10,000 4000
Total borrowings 68,156 52,087

The Government of Malta, under the terms of Act XVIII of 2010 entitlted ‘An Act to authonse and
regulate the raising of loans for the purposes of entenng into re-lending agreements with Air Malta
p | ¢, has consented, following the approval of the European Commission, to the request made by
the company, under the European commumity Guidelnes on State Aid for Rescuing and
Restructuring Firms in Difficulty (2004/C 244/02), to be granted a loan of €52,000,000 to enable the
company to meet its short-term hquidity requirements and enable it to continue its operabons until
the Restructuring Plan has been put into place As at the reporting date, €52,000,000 worth of
drawdown has been made

The loan, which carnes interest of 6 49%, was to be repaid in fult with interest by not later than &
months from the first drawdown date. On 12 May 2011, the shareholder, under the terms of the
said Act, granted the company a further extension of 6 months from the orniginal repayment date A
further extension was granted by the lender on 11 November 2011 to extend the repayment of the
loan to 15 November 2012

Dunng the current financial year, the Company obtained further banking facilities for the amount of
€30,000,000 which facihtres are to be repaid from the proceeds of sale of the properties that are the
subject of the Promise of Sale Agreement with the Government of Malta within a penod not
exceeding three years These facilites are secured by a general hypothec supported by a special
hypothec on the Group and Company's immovable property

Furthermore, as at 31 March 2012, banking facilities of the Group and Company for an amount of
€13,076,000 are partly secured by a general hypothec supported by a special hypothec on
immovable property held by a subsidiary Bank loans taken out by subsidianes are secured by
charges over their assets and are also supported by guarantees from the holdng Company (also
refer to borrowings presented in Note 18)
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Borrowings - continued

The Group’s and Company’s bank borrowings are subject to floating interest rates The weighted
average effective interest rates for borrowings at the end of the reporting pencd are as follows

Group and Company

2012 2011

% %
Bank overdrafts 312 472
Bank loans 4.85 505
Borrowings from ultimate shareholder 6.49 848

Matunty of non-current borrowings.

Group and Company

2012 20M

€000 €000

Between one and two years - 4,000
Between two and three years 10,000 -
10,000 4,000

Deferred taxation

Deferred iIncome taxes are calculated on all temperary differences under the hability method and
are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the penod when the asset 1s reabsed or
the liability 1s settled based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted by the end of the
reporting penad The principal tax rate used 1s 35% (2011 35%)

Group

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows

Daferred tax assets Deferred tax liabilities
Prowisions Unabsorbed Unabsorbed Falr Revaluation
& other tax losses capital losses |Remeasurement valuation of of property,
ralated camed camed of denvative  investment plant and
tems forward forward Instruments property  equipment Net
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Batance at 186 - - - - - 186
4 April 2011
Credited/(charged) to
proft or loss (62) 1,699 - - - - 1,827
Credited/{debited) to
other comprehensive
Income In equrty - - - (1,699) - -1 (1,699
Balance at
31 March 2012 124 1,899- - {1,699) - - 124
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25.

Deferred taxation - continued

Included in the Group’s deferred tax assets as at 31 March 2012 is a balance of €124,000 (2011
€62,000) relating to discontinued operations

Daferrod tax assots Daferrad tax liabllitles
Provisions Unabsorbed Unabsorbed Far Revaluation
& other  tax lossss capital losses |Remeasurement valuation of of property,
ralatad carried camed of derivative  Investment plant and
items forward forward nstruments property  equipment Not
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Balancs at
1 April 2010 205 13,466 - (1,011) {2,883} (9,572) 205
Credited/(charged) to
profit or loss (19) (13,466) - - 2,883 - | ¢10,602)
Credited/(debited) to
other comprehensive
Incomae 1n equity - - - 1,011 - 9,572 | 10,583
Balance ot
31 March 2011 186 - - - - - 186

The deferred tax lhabibty attnbutable to the revaluation of property has been reversed in the
preceding financial year due to the Promise of Sale Agreement covenng the majonty of the
revalued property referred to in Notes 5 and 6, whereby the disposal 1s not hikely to have tax
implications for the Company This necessitated the reversal of an equivalent deferred tax asset
ansing from unabsorbed tax losses, as the recognised asset was inextncably linked to the labiiity
attnbutable to the revaluation of property

The recognised deferred tax assets and habililes are expected to be recovered or settled
principally after more than twelve months

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through
future taxable profits 1s probable At 31 March 2012 and 2011, the Group had the following
unutihsed tax credits and deductble temporary differences in respect of which deferred taxation
has not been recognised-

2012 2011
€000 €000
Unutilised tax credits ansing from,
Unabsorbed tax losses and capital allowances 210,314 145,948
Unabsorbed capital losses 46,597 45,597
Deductible temporary differences ansing pnncipally from
non-curent assets and provisions 65,101 53.061

Accordingly, the Group has a potenbal deferred tax asset amounting to €112,705,000 {2011-
€85,962,000) which has not been recognised in these financial statemments Whereas tax losses and
capital losses have no expiry date and may be carned forward indefinitely, unabsorbed capital
allowances are forfeited upon cessation of the trade Capttal losses may be offset solely aganst
future capital gains
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25.

28.

Deferred taxation - continued

Company

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows

Deforred tax assots Daeforrad tax (iabilitles
Far Revgluation
Unabsorbed  Unabsorbed | Remeasurement valuatton of  of property
tax lossas  capial losses of denvative  investment plant and
camed forward camed forward instruments property equipment Net
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Belance at
1April 2010 13,466 - (1.011) (2,883) (9.572) -
Credtted/{charged) to
profil or loss (13,488) - - 2,833 - (10,583)
Credited/ (debited) to
other comprehensive
ncome In equity - - 1,011 - 9,572 10 583
Balance at
31 March 2011 - - - - . .
Deferred lax assots Deforred tax liabillties
Far  Revaluatien
Unabsorbed  Unabsorbed (Remeasurament valuation of of property
taxiosses  capital losses of denvative  investment plant and
carried forward carried forward instruments property equipment Net
€000 €000 €000 €000 €000 €000
Balance at 1 April 2011 - - - - - -
Credited/(charged) to profit
or loss 1,699 - - - - 1,699
Credited/(debitad) to other
comprehenshve Income
in equity - - (1,699) - - (1,699}
Balance at
31 March 2012 1,689 - {1,699} - - -

Provisions in respect of maintenance costs

Group and Company

Prowvisions in respect of maintenance costs are calculated to allow for unclaimable costs expected
to be incurred by the Company in maintaining awcraft under operating leases throughout the
unexpired penod of the lease and in providing for any compensation to meet re-delivery conditions

upon termination of the lease
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26.

Provisions In respect of maintenance costs - continued

Group and Company - continued

The amount of the prowisions at 31 March 2012 and 2011 represent the excess of amounts

charged to profit or loss over the actual costs incurred

Year ended 31 March
At beginning of year
Charged to profit or loss
- Additiona! provisions, including effects of unwinding

non-current provisions

Used dunng year
At end of year

Analysis of total provisions

At 31 March

Non-current
Current

2012 2011
€000 €000
368,292 28,576
12,825 13,437
(8,421) (5.721)
40,698 36,292
2012 2011
€000 €000
37,190 32,885
3,508 3,407
40,686 36,292

Through its aircraft lease agreements, the Company entered into an arrangement with the lessors
to pay in advance maintenance reserves so as to meet maintenance and re-delivery lease
conditons As at 31 March 2012, these reserves which are reflected with the provisiens disclosed
above, amounted to €44,476,000 (2011 €39,265,000) Furthermore, the Company has agreed to
provide to the lessor irevocable letters of credit as secunty to cover costs related to maintenance
of engines At 31 March 2012, the amounts In this respect amounted to €45,423,000 (2011

€35,477,000) (Note 38)
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28.

Other provisions
Group and Company

€000

At 1 Apnl 2010, 31 March 2011 and
31 March 2012 418

The above principally represent provisions in relation to potential liabilities attnbutable to the affairs
of previously held investments of the Group These provisions are classified as current habilities.

Information on operating results

28 1 Revenue and Other operating incoms from continuing operations

- With the exception of leasing income, income from aidine activibies 1s principally denved from flights

to and from Malta The Group's revenue from other business achvities I1s also denved from Malta

Group
2012 2011
€000 €000
Revenue on airline activities 200,538 190,123
Aircraft leasing revenue 3,616 1,896
Ground related and other revenue 9,922 9,567

214,076 201,586

Other operating income recognised in the preceding financial year pnncipally compnsed gains on
disposal of engines realised through sale and leaseback arrangements
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Information on operating results

28.2 Expenses by nature

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Aurcraft fuel and oils 68,300 52,468 66,399 52,468
Aurcraft operating lease rentals 30,206 30,137 30,208 30,137
Asrcraft maintenance 22,622 21,344 22,622 21,344
Other flight related costs 49,832 48,048 50,159 53,858
Restructunng costs (Note 28 3 1) 4,239 31,700 4,239 31,700
Marketing, distnbution and
representation costs 9,802 11,071 9,802 11,071
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 5) 1,195 2,718 1,195 2,709
Employee benefit expense (Note 29) 42,759 46,715 42,7598 46,715
Net movement in provisions for
impairment of trade recewvables
(included in ‘Administrative expenses') 732 680 732 680
Exchange differences 437 788 437 788
Other expenses 18,728 22,006 19,710 23,310
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
costs and administrative expenses 248,051 267,676 248,260 274,880
The amounts disclased in the table above relate solely to continuing cperations
28.3 Restructuring costs
28 3.1 Restructuring costs recogrused in profit or loss
Selling and
Costof  distnbution Administrative
sales costs expenses Total
€000 €'000 €000 €000
At 31 March 2012
Cosls related to
Professional and related fees - - 4,239 4,239
- - 4,239 4,238

At 31 March 2011
Costs related to’
Voluntary redundancy and early

retirement schemes 19,125 4719 4,356 28,200
Professional and related fees - - 3,500 3.500

19,125 4719 7,856 31,700

The amounts recognised as expenditure during the current financial year comprise addtional
professional fees, service charges and other related fees incurred in the implementation of the
Restructunng Plan.
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28

Information on operating results — continued

28.3 Raestructuring costs - continued

28 3 2 Provision in respect of restructuring costs

As at 31 March 2011, the Company had reflected as a provision In its statement of financial
position the estimated impact of restructuring costs attributable to voluntary and early retirement

schemes established as part of the Restructunng Plan The estimated impact of €28 2 miliion had
been reflected as a current provision

2012 2011

€000 €000

At beginning of year 28,200 -

Charged to profit or loss - 28,200
Reclassification of amounts previously presented

within other liabilities 4914 -

Utiised dunng the year (6,300) -

At end of year 28,814 28,200

The adjusted provision covers
» oblgations under voluntary and early retrement schemes as a result of the restructuring
process,
one-time payment obligatons emanating from restructuring agreements, and
obligations to effect payments to a hmited number of former staff members actually entitled
to benefits under previous early retirement schemes

These obligations are intrinsically inked to the implementation of the Company's Restructuning
Plan and accordingly are considered as restructunng costs. The obligatons emanating from
voluntary and early retrement schemes are treated as termination benefits for accounting
purposes

After the end of the reporting period, 467 staff members have been granted entitlement to the
voluntary and early retirement schemes established as part of the Restructunng Plan

Untl 31 March 2012, the Cornpany has effected payments amounting to €8 2 milon, to a company
which s controlled by the Government of Malta, in relatton to the administration of the voluntary
and early rebrement schemes referred to previcusly

During the current financial year, the Company has continued to implement a number of projects
eammarked as part of the restructunng process. Estimated future costs related to these projects
amount to approximately to €7 6 millon, but such expenses have not been reflected in the
provision for restructuring costs as at 31 March 2012 in view of the timing of the decisions relating
to such projects These expenses are expected to be incurred dunng the financial years ending 31
March 2013 and 2014
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28,

29.

Information on opearating rasuits — continued
28.4 Auditors’ fees

Fees charged by auditors for services rendered dunng the financial perods ended
31 March 2012 and 2011 relate to the following

Group
2012 2011
€000 €000
Audit services — annual statutory
- Parent Company auditors
- Company 155 166
- subsidianes 80 90
Other services
- Parent Company auditors Company
- tax adwisory and comphance services 8 7
- other non-audit services 29 19

Fees for audit services are approved by the Audit Committee, having been reviewed for cost
effectiveness The Committee also reviews and approves the nature and extent of non-audit
services to ensure that independence 1s maintained

Taxation services include comphance services such as tax return preparation, along with advisory
services such as consultation on tax matters, tax advice retating to transactions, and other tax
planning and adwvice

Other non-audit servicas primarily include advisory services related to transaction support

The figures included in the table above also reflect amounts relating to the Group's discontinued
operations

Employee benefit expense -
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Wages and salanes 41,728 46,889 40,483 44,324
Social secunty costs 2,381 2,679 2,296 2.391
44,109 49,568 42,759 46,715

Costs in relaton to voluntary and early retrement schemes are reflected in Note 283 to the
financial statements

Employse benefit expense included in the Group's figures above relatng to discontinued
operations amount to €1,350,000 (2011 €2,853,000)

During the current financial year, the Group incurred staff termination costs (not reflected in the
table above) amounting to €179,000 as a result of the cessation of operations of a subsidiary
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30.

31.

Employee benefit expense - continued

Average number of persons employed dunng the year

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
By category
Cost of sales 086 1,084 943 996
Administrative 159 187 145 181
Selling and distributton 146 148 148 148
1,291 1,419 1,234 1,305

Group figures in respect of employee numbers, disclosed in the table above, include 57 (2011

114) employess attnbutable to discontinued operations

Investment and other related income

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Gross dividends recewable from
investments in subsidianes - - 3,896 -
Gross dividends receivable from
investments In associates - - - 225
Other movements atiributable to other
financial assets {172) 26 {204) 33
Provision for imparment of
available-for-sale investment (162) (581) - (581)
(334) (555) 3,692 (323)
Results of subsidiaries and assoclates
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Share of results of associates
and related amounts - 655 - -

88

-t

}

-

——

—J 1

eJ

R

e



-

r—— — 1~

L S

AR MALTA p.l.c.

Annual Report and Consolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

32.

33.

Finance income

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Interest recevable and simitar income
from subsidiaries - - 11 11
Interest receivable and similar income
from associates 3 3 3 2
Interest receivable from bank deposits 325 176 170 22
Exchange differences on bank deposits (207) (14) (297) (n
31 165 {113) 18

Company figures disclosed above in respect of interest receivable and similar income from
subsidianes include amounts of €11,000 (2011 €11,000) relating to discontinued operations
Interest ncome eamed by the Group attnbutable to discontinued operations is disclosed in Note 18

to the financial statements

Finance costs

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Interest payable on bank loans
and overdrafts 514 052 5t4 952
Interest payable to subsidianes - - 19 10
Interest payable to shareholder (Note 24} 3,318 476 3,316 476
Bank charges and similar expenses,
including exchange differences on
borrowings 741 254 741 254
4,571 1,682 4,590 1,692

Company figures disclosed above in respect of interest payable to subsidianes do not include
amounts relating to discontinued operations Interest costs incurred by the Group, mainly ansing
from bank financing, attributable to these discontnued operations 1s disclosed in Note 18 to the

financial statements
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Taxation

Current taxation
Current tax expense

Deferred taxation.
Deferred tax charge

AtinQutable to
Continuing operations (reflected on
face of income statement)
- current taxation
- deferred taxation {(Note 25)

Discontinued operations
- current taxaton
- deferred taxation (Note 25)

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
€000 €000 €000 €000
{347) 340 - -
(1,8637) 10,602 (1.699) 10,583
(1,984) 10,942 {1,699) 10,583
(347) 410 - -
(1,699) 10,583 {1,699) 10,583
(2,048) 10,993 (1,699) 10,583
- (70) - -
62 19 - -
62 (51) . -
(1,884) 10,042 (1,698) 10,583
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34. Taxation - continued
The tax on the Group's and Company’s results before tax differs from the theoretical amount that
would anse using the basic tax rate applicable as follows
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Loss before tax from continuing operations (37,630) {65,897) (35,051) (67.762)
Loss before tax from discontinued
operations (Note 18) {(2,817) (1,455} {5,000} (10,509)
Loss before tax for the year (40,447) (67,352) (40,051) (78,271}
Tax on loss before tax at the statutory rate
of 35% {14,158) (23,573) (14,018) (27,395)
Tax effect of
Income not subject to tax {581) - - .
Deferred tax asset in respect of unutilised
tax losses ansing in pnor years recognised
In current year (1,699) - (1,899) -
Deferred tax asset in respect of unutihsed
tax losses and unabsorbed capital
allowances ansing during the current year
not recognised 13,124 13,080 12,024 12,837
Adjustment to deferred tax asset in respect of
unutiised tax losses recognised In prior
financial periods - 10,583 - 10,583
Unrecognised temporary differences and
other movements, manly attnbutable to
tangible non-current assets and
provisions 2,546 10,832 2,088 14,917
Income effectively taxed at reduced rates {1,218) {80) + (94) (159)
Tax charge in the accounts {1.984) 10,942 {1,609) -~ 10,583
35 Directors’' emoluments

Group and Company

2012 2011
€000 €000
Emoltuments of directors of Air Malta p l.c.:
Total fees and other emoluments charged in
these financial statements 45 66

Insurance premium of €168,000 (2011 €159,000) has been paid during the year in respect of
professtonal indemnity cover relating to the liabiity of the directors of Ar Malta plc and other
officers

In addtion to the above emoluments, during the preceding financial year fees amounting to
€61,000 were earmed by other officers, not directors of Air Malta p.| ¢, in their capacity as directors
appointed by Airr Malta p | ¢ on the boards of Group and associated companies

91




Annual Report and Ccnsolidated Financial Statements - 31 March 2012

AR MALTAPpIC

Cash used in operations

Reconcilation of operating loss to cash used in operations

Operating loss from continuing operations
Qperating loss from discontinued
operations {Note 18)

Operaling loss for the year

Adjustments for

Depreciation of property, ptant and
equipment (Note 5)

Gans on disposal of assets classified
as held for sale

Impairment of property and related charges

Gains on disposal of tangible
non-current assets

Net movement in provisions for
impairment of trade receivables

Losses from changes in fair value of
Investment property

Movement i provisions in respect of
maintenance costs

Movement in provision for restructunng costs

Effects of exchange rate movements

Other mavements related to investment
property

Movement in prowvisions for impairment
relating to investments in subsidianes

Loans granted to subsidianies wntten off

Movement in provistons for impairment of
amounts receivable from subsidiary

Amounts receivable from subsidiary wrntten off

Changes in working capital

lnventones

Trade and other recevables

Trade and other payables

Provisions in respect of maintenance costs
used dunng the year

Provision in respect of restructunng costs
used dunng the year

Cash used in operations

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 201
€000 €000 €000 €000
(32,756} ({64,480) (34,040) (65,765)
(2,787} {1,479) {6,295) (10,508)
(35,543) (65,999) (40,335) (76,274)
1,219 2,811 1,185 2,709
- - - (221)

1,336 - - -
- {4,257) - (4,206)

746 930 733 680

- 4,426 - 4,426
12,825 13,437 12,825 13,437
- 28,200 - 28,200

167 (96) - -
(56) 346 (45) 355

- - 4173 8,120

- - 312 -

- - (894) 2,610

- - 2,704 -

an 196 3N 121
(1,393) 3,068 (5,718) 4,162
(1,170) 4,180 886 3,548
(8,421) (5,721) (8,421) (5,721)
(6,300) - (6,300) .
(36,279) (18,439)  (38,572) (18,124)
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37.

Commitments
Capital and other commitments

Group and Company

2012 201
€000 €000

Capital expendtture in respect of property,

plant and equipment

- Authorised and contracted for 553 8
- Authonised and not yet contracted for 2,847 -
Other commitments 15,119 36,291
18,519 36,299

Other commitments anse from agreements with related and other parties entered into by the Group
pnncipally in respect of the temporary emphyteusis on the property, outsourcing of the IT and other
related functions, together with the prowision of commercial business improvement consultancy
services The commitments as at 31 March 2011 reflected in the table above that are atinbutable to
the temporary emphyteusis, which property 1s covered by the irrevocable Promise of Sale
Agreement entered into dunng the current year referred to in Note 5, amount to €19,927,000
{pnmanly included within “Later than five years” in table below)

The future expected payments under these contractual arrangements are as follows:

Group and Company

2012 2011

€000 €000

Not later than one year 5,858 5,545
Later than one year and not later than five years 8,251 9,557
Later than five years 1,010 21,189
15,119 36,291

Operating lease commiments — where a Group undertaking 1s the Jessee

The future mimimum lease payment obligatons under non-cancellable arcraft and engine
operating leases are as follows

Group and Company

2012 2011
€000 €000
Not later than one year 29,305 28,329
Later than one year and not later than five years 108,312 114,588
Later than five years 17,837 34,549

153,254 177,466
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37.

38.

39.

Commitments - continued
Operating lease commutments — where a Group undertaking 1s the lessor

The future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable awrcraft and engine
operating leases are as follows

Group and Company

2012 2011
€000 €000
Not later than one year . 2,179 2,043
Later than one yaear and not later than five years 2,187 4,136
4,376 6,179
Contingencies
The Group's contmgent liabilibes as at 31 March include-
2012 2011
€000 €000
Bank guarantees, documentary credits
and other indemnities (refer to Note 17
and 26) 49,654 36,617

As at the end of the reporting penod, the Company has contingent labilites amounting to €1,795,000
(2011 €1,795,000) in respect of guarantees given to secure the banking facilities of subsidianes.

Related party transactions

All companies forming part of the Ar Maita Group are considered by the directors to be related
parties since these companies are all ultimately owned by Arr Malta pl.c Trading transactions
between these companies would typically include service charges, Group interest charges and
other such items which are normally encountered in a Group context

In the ordinary course of 1ts operations, the Group carries out business with the Government of
Malta, government departments, pubhic sector corporations and cother entihes owned or controlled
by the Government The Government of Malta ultimately controls the Company by virtue of its 98%
shareholding and 1s accordingly represented on the Board of Directors

In the opinton of the directors, disclosure of related party transactions, which are generally camed
out on commercial terms and conditions, 1s only necessary when the transactions effected have a
matenai impact on the operating results and financial position of the Group. The aggregate invoiced
amounts In respect of a number of transaction types carned out with related partes are not
considered material and accordingly they do not have a significant effect on these financial
statements,
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39,

Related party transactions - continued

Except for transactions disclosed or referred to previously, pnncipally borrowings from the principal
shareholder (Note 24), the following significant operating lransactions, which were camed out with
the respective categones of related paries, have a matenal effect on the operating results and

financial position of the Group

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
€000 €000 €000 €000
Government and other entities controlled
by Government
- Sales of services 2,972 2,401 2,882 2,312
- Purchases of matenals and services 40,739 41,097 38.401 40,833
43,711 43,4908 41,283 43,145
Subsidianes
- Sales of services - - 5,805 5,910
- Purchases of services - - 1,509 4,371
. - 7,494 10,281
Associates
- Sales of services 1,040 1,320 1,040 1,320
- Purchases of services 2,741 3,190 2,610 2,990
3,781 4510 3,650 4,310
Key management personnel
- Sales of services 14 9 14 g

On 7 December 2011, the Company entered into an irrevocable Promise of Sale Agreement with
the Government In relation to the disposal of the Company’s main property for the amount of

€66 2 million (refer to Notes 5 and 6)

Year-end balances with related parties, arising pnncipally from the transactions referred to

previously, are reflected in the statement of financial positon

Expenditure amounting to €895,000 (2011. €848,000) has been recharged by the parent Company

to associates and other related parties

Remuneration and other benefits payable to key management personnel, which comprise the

Company's directors, are disclosed in Note 35 to these financial statements

Interest receivabie from related parties and interest payable to related parties are disclosed In

Notes 32 and 33 respectivaly
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M.

Statutory information

Air Malta p | ¢ 1s a public imited habihty Company and 1s incorporated 1n Malta

The Air Malta Group

Subsidianies and associates within the Group as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were the following

41.1 Subsidiaries

ArrMaltaplc
Air Malta Bwidings, Head Office, Luqa

Holiday Malta Company Limited

Asr Malta House, 314/318 Upper Richmond Road,
Putney, London

Malta Air Charter Company Limited
Air Malta Builldings, Vjal I-Avjazzjoni, Luga
(struck off on 19 August 2010)

Holiday Malta Transport Company Limited

Airr Maita House, 314/318 Upper Richmond Road,
Putney, London

(held by Holiday Malta Company Limited)

The Hohday Travel Club Company Limited
Air Maita House, 314/316 Upper Richmond Road,
Putney, London

(held by Holiday Malta Company Limited)

Holiday Malta {(Russia) Limited
Air Malta Buildings, Vjat I-Avjazzjoni, Luga
{held by Holiday Malta Company Linuted)

Holiday Malta (ltaha) S

Via Giacomo Leopard: 7,

95127 Catania, Sicily

(held by Holiday Malta Company Limited)
(in higwdation)

Group

% holding
2012 2011
N/A N/A
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Company
% holding

2012

NIA

100

2011

N/A

100

Country of
incorporation

Maita

United
Kingdom

Malta

United
Kingdom

United
Kingdom

Malta

ltaly
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41,

411

The Air Malta Group - continued

Subsidlaries - continued

Subsidianes and associates within the Group as at 31 March 2012 and 2011 were the following

Group
% holding
2012 2011

Holiday Malta {Hellas) Tounsm EPE 100 100
91, Alexandras Ave, 11474 Athens
{held by Hohday Malta Company Linited)

The Hofiday Travel Club Transport Company 100 100
Limited

Air Malta House, 314/3168 Upper Richmond Road,

Putney, London

(held by The Holiday Travel Club Company

Limited}

Travel 2000 S rl 100 100
Via Giacomo Leopard 7,
95127 Catania, Sy
(held by Hohday Malta (ltaha) Sr1)
(in hquidation)

Selmun Palace Hotel Company Limited 100 100
Arr Maita Bulldings, Vjal l-Avjazzjon), Luga

Arport Services Company Limited 100 100
Air Malta Buildings, Vjal I-Avjazzjom, Luga
(in hlquidation)

Osprey Insurance Brokers Company Ltd 100 100
Air Malta Buildings, Vijal I-Aviazzion|, Luga

Shield Insurance Company Limited 100 100
Air Malta Buildings, Vjal I-Avjazzjon, Luga

Company
% holding
2012 20114

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

Country of
incorporation

Greece

United
Kingdom

Italy

Malta

Malta

Malta

Malta
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The Air Malta Group - continued

Associates
Group Company  Country of
% holding % holding incorporation
2012 2091 2012 2011
AZZURRAarr Sp A 49 49 49 49 ltaly

Viale Papa Giovanm XX, 48
24121 Bergamo
{in hguidation)

Cottonera Properties Co Ltd 49 49 49 49 Malta
c/o Malta Investment Management Co Ltd
Trade Centre, San Gwann Industrial Estate,
San Gwann
(0 liquidation)

World Aviation Group Limited 50 50 50 50 Mailta
Floor 1, Aviation Centre, Luqa
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